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November 4, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

(1) Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with the
Contractor listed below, in bold, for the purpose of contract consolidation and the resultant
expansion of the scope of services in response to a consolidation grant award received from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the ongoing provision of a
Permanent Supportive Housing Program for individuals, youth, and families >vho are experiencing
chronic homelessness, by adding the Federal Fiscal Year 2021 HUD award amount of $136,849,
increasing the total price limitation from $7,857,202 to $7,994,051, effective upon Governor and
Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

(2) Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with the
Contractor listed below, in bold, for the purpose of extending the completion date for two (2)
months, from June 30, 2023 to August 31, 2023, as specified in the table below, to match the
terms of the consolidation grant, as required by HUD, effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

below.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table

Vendor Name

& Code
Area Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Current

Completion
Date

Revised

Completion
Date

G&C

History

Community
Action

Partnership of
Strafford

County,
Dover, NH

177200-B004

Statewide $154,096 $0 $154,096
June 30,

2023

June 30,

2023

0; 6/19/19

(Item #46)

A1; 5/6/20

(Item #37)

A2: 6/30/21

(Item #47)
A3: 6/29/22

(item #55)

Community
Action

Program
Belknap-
Merrimadt

Counties, Inc.,
Concord, NH
177203-B003

Statewide $346,888 $0 $346,888
June 30,
2023

June 30,
2023

0: 6/19/19

(Item #46)

A1:5/6/20

(Item #37)

A2: 6/30/21

(Item #47)
A3: 6/29/22

(Item #55)

77tc Ihparlment of Health and Human Services' Mission is (o join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citi^ns to achieve health and independence.
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Vendor Name

& Code
Area Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Current
Completion

Date

Revised

Completion
Date

G&G

History

Families in

Transition

Manchester,
NH

157730-B001

Concord $274,340 $0 $274,340
June 30.
2023

June 30,
2023

0:6/19/19

(Item #46)
A1: 5/6/20

(item #37)
A2; 6/30/21

(item #47)
A3:6/29/22

(Item #55)

The Lakes

Region Mental
Health Center,

Inc.,

Laconla, NH
154480-B001

Laconla $421,578 $0 $421,578
June 30,
2023

June 30.

2023

O: 6/19/19

(item #46)
A1:5/6/20

(Item #37)
A2:6/30/21

(Item #47)
A3: 6/29/22

fitem #55)

Southwestern

Community
Services, inc..

Keene, NH

177511-R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$596,733 $0 $596,733 August 31.
2023

August 31,
2023

0: 6/19/19

(item #46)
A1:5/6/20

(Item #37)
A2: 12/2/20

(Item #11)
A3: 6/30/21

(Item #47)
A4: 6/29/22

(item #55)

Southwestern

Community
Services, Inc.,
Keene, NH

177511-R001

Statewide $346,208 $0 $346,208 June 30,
2023

June 30,

2023

0: 6/19/19

(Item #46)
A1:5/6/20

(Item #37)
A2; 6/30/21

(item #47)
A3: 6/29/22

(item #55)

Southwestern
Community

Services, Inc.,

Keene, NH

177511-R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$1,169,548 $0 $1,169,548
June 30,
2023

June 30,

2023

0:6/19/19

(Item #46)
A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)
A2: 6/30/21

(item #47)
A3: 6/29/22

(item #55)

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Deny, NH

174116-R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$1,126,332 $0 $1,126,332
June 30.
2023

June 30,
2023

0: 8/19/19

(Item #46)
At: 5/6/20

(item #37)
A2: 6/30/21

(item #47)
A3: 6/29/22

(item #55)

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Deny, NH

174116-R001

Western

Rockingham
& Coos

Counties

$2,538,755 $0 $2,538,755
July 31,
2023

July 31.
2023

0:6/19/19

(item #46)
At: 5/6/20

(Item #37)
A:2 12/2/20

(item #11)
A3 6/30/21

(Item #47)
A4: 6/29/22

(Item #55)
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Vendor Name

ft Code
Area Served

Current
Amount

inerease
{Decreaee)

Revfeed

Amount

Current

Completion
Date

Revised

Completion
Date

GftO
History

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc.,
Beriin, NH

177195-B009

Statewde $523,288 $0 $523,288
June 30,
2023

June 30,
2023

0:6/19/19
(Item #46)
A1; 6/6/20
(Item #37)
A2:6/30/21
(Item #47}
A3:6^29/22

(Item #55)

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc.,
Berlin, NH

177195-6009

Grafton,
Coos ft

Carroll

Countlas

$$69,4$« $136,849 $496,285
June 30,
2023

August 31,
2023

O; 6/19/19

(Item #46)
A1:5/6m)
(Item #37)
A2; 6/30/21

(Item #47)
A3:6/29/22

(lt«n«S5)

ToUi: $7,857,202 $136,849 $7,994,061

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
apprc^riation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget tine items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget OfTtce,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because federal r^ulations require all procurement efforts
to be directed by (HUD) which requires the Department to specify the vendor's name during the
annual, federal. Continuum of Care (CoC) competitive application process for up to a year prior
to the grant award being issued. As the Collatwrative Applicant, the Department is required to
issue a Request for Proposals, through the Continuum, based on the HUD CoC Program Notice
of Funding Opportunity (NOFO). HUD reviews and scores vendor applications based on federal
rank and review policy, and scoring tools, aeated to match the federal NOFO. HUD subsequently
awards funding based on strict federal criteria specifying eligible activities, populations to be
served, expected performance outcomes, and time frames for the application competition and
subsequent Deparimenta! agreements. The Department receives notification of die awards and
signed grant agreements from HUD several months later; at which time agreements, such as that
contained in this request, can be executed.

This request is in response to HUD consolidation grant award number
NH0020L1T002114, for which the Department received an initial award announcement letter
dated July 11,2022, and which requires an expansion to the scope of work, by way of amendment
to this contract.

The purpose of diis request is for the one contractor listed above, in bold, to consolidate
two current contracts for this single Contractor to provide a Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH)
program. The contract approved on June 19, 2019, Item #46 (known as PSH 1) is absorbing the
contract approved on June 24, 2020, Item #20 (known as PSH 2). The expiration date of PSH 2
is October 31, 2022. The Condactor will provide the same services through a consolidated
contract for the same geographic area. This consolidation will reduce the administrative burden
of managing and monitoring two separate contracts for the continuation of these services provided
in Grafton, Coos and Carroll Counties.
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This program delivere rental assistance, associated administrative services and
supportive services, including case management, to help individuals, youth and families who are
experiencing chronic homelessness obtain and remain in permanent housing.

This program will serve approximately 12 households comprised of approximately 20
individuals, at any given time annually.

The grant also requires the Department to extend the contract end date by two (2) months
to match the terms of the consolidation grant, as required by HUD, though there are no renewal
options left on this contract.

Using the federally recommended Housing First model, and the development of
Stabilization and Crisis Management plans, the Contractor provides Housing Stability Case
Management and facilitates each pailicipant's relocation to sustained permanent housing.
Additionally, the Contractor works to maximize each participant's ability to live more independently
by providing connections to community and mainstream sen/ices. The Department will monitor
sen/ices by;

• Conducting annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements;

• Reviewing semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic
information, as well as income and expense reports, to include match dollars; and

• Reviewing data entered into the New Hampshire Homeless Management
Information System, which is the primary reportirrg tool for outcomes and activities
of shelter and housing programs.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals, youth and
families experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #
NH0020L1T002114.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori AyShibinette
Commissioner

The Deparlnieni ofHmlth and Hunton Services'Mission is U> join communilies and famUiea
in providing opportunities for citieens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM
100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

fOecrease) Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for P rocram Services 42307418 $38,524.00 $0.00 $38,524.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42307421 $38,524.00 $0 00 $38,524.00
2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307424 $38,574 on $0.00 $38,524,00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $38,524.00 SO.Ofl $38,524,00

Sub Total $154,096.00 $0.00 $154,096.00

State Fisc^

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

fDecreasel
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proaram Series 42307418 $86,722.00 $0.00 $86,722.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42307421 $86,722.00 $0.00 $86,722.00
2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307424 $86,722.00 $0.00 $86,722.00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Rdief TBD $86,722.00 $0.00 $86,722.00

Sub Total $346,888.00 $0.00 $346,888.00

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42301508 $68,585.00 $0.00 $68,585.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42301510 $68,585.00 $0.00 $68,585.00
2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42301512 $68,585.00 $0.00 $68,585.00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst aid Rdief TBD $68,585.00 so.oo $68,585.00

Sub Total $274,340.00 $0.00 $274,340.00

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Cunent Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Serwces 42307512 $99,835.00 $0.00 $99,835.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Serwes 42307514 $102,211.00 SO.OO $102,211,00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Serwces 42307517 $107,170.00 $0.00 $107,170.00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $112,362.00 $0,00 $112,362.00

Sub Total 3421.578.00 $0.00 $421,578.00

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42308208 $453,606.00 $0.00 $453,606.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308210 $523,538.00 SO.OO $523,538.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308212 $292,036.00 $0.00 $292,036.00
2022 074-500585 Contracts for Prooram Services 42307812 $154,330.00 $0.00 $154,330.00
2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307424 $86,552.00 $0.00 $86,552.00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $393,696.00 $0.00 $393,696.00
2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $178,675.00 $0.00 $178,675.00
2024 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $30,056.00 $0.00 $30,056.00

Sub Total $2,112,489.00 $0,00 $2,112,489.00

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42307612 $540,865.00 SO.OO $540,865.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42302403 $925,837.00 SO.OO $925,837.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42302406 $286,119.00 SO.OO $286,119,00
2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42302121 $749,227.00 $0.00 8749,227.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 2
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD S299.3ig.00 $0.00 $299,319.00
2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rdief TBD $797,191.00 $0.00 $797,191.00
2024 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $66,729.00 $0.00 $66,729.00

Sub Total $3,665,087.00 $0.00 $3,665,087.00

Tri County Community Actton Program, Inc. 177195-B009

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

fDecr easel
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42307418 $219,781.00 $0.00 $219,781.00
2021 102-500731 Conbects for Prooram Services 42307421 $220,501.00 $0.00 $220.501.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Progran Services 42301685 $90,399.00 $0.00 $90,399.00
2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Rdief 42307424 $130,822.00 $0.00 $130,822.00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42301688 $221,221.00 $117,299.00 $338,520.00
2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42301688 $0.00 $19,550.00 $19,550.00

Sub Total $882,724.00 $136,849.00 $1,019,573.00

I  OverallTotall $7,657.202.00! $136,849.001 $7,994.051.001

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 2 of 2
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Permanent Supportive Housing I. Expansion Program
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019 (Item #46), as amended on May 6, 2020 (Item #37), as amended on June 30, 2021
(Item #47), and as most recently amended on June 29, 2022 (Item #55), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the teims and conditions specified in the Contract, as amended, and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

August 31, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$496,285

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A - Amendment #4,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4., to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1. NH0020L1T001811 (SFY 2020) Grant Year 1

1.2.4.2. NH0020L1T001912 (SFY 2021) Grant Year 2

1.2.4.3. NH0020L1T002013 (SFY 2022) Grant Year 3

1.2.4.4. NH0020L1T002114 (SFY 2023) Grant Year 4

1.2.4.5. NH0020L1T002114 (SFY 2024) Grant Year 5

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.7., Subparagraph 1.2.7.1.,
to read:

1.2.7.1. Not to exceed $496,285

7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program:

W

hr
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-25-A04 Page 1 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date
10/25/2022
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7/1/19

6/30/20

(SPY 2020)

7/1/20

6/30/21

(SPY 2021)

7/1/21

6/30/22

(SPY 2022)

7/1/22

6/30/23

(SPY 2023)

7/1/23

8/31/23

(SPY 2024)

TOTAL

Rental

Assistance
$55,440 $56,160 $56,880 $ 120,919 $20,153 $309,552

Supportive
Services $29,586 $29,586 $29,586 $67,719 $ 11,286 $167,763

Administrative

Expenses $3,933 $3,933 $3,933 $6,147 $ 1,024 $18,970

Total Program
Amount $88,959 $89,679 $90,399 $194,785 $32,463 $496,285

8. Modify Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, Project Costs,
Payment Schedule, Review by the State, Subsection 3.4, Payment of Project Costs, by replacing
Paragraph 3.4.5. Schedule of Payments, to read:

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments

3.4.5.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following the
month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice:

3.4.5.1.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with New
Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

3.4.5.1.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

3.4.5.1.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the previous
month.

3.4.5.1.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice that
may include, but are not limited to. time sheets, payroll records, receipts for
purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

3.4.5.1.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

3.4.5.1.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation, and
is emailed to: dhhs.bhhsfinance@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

9. Add Exhibit B-1 Amendment #4 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-25-AD4 Page 2 of 4

Contractor initials

Date

r~°*

10/23/2022
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

10/24/2022

Date

~Oocu$igA*d by:

Name: "^^ren Hebert
Title: Division Director

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

10/23/2022

Date

**Oocu8ffln«d by:G-0
Juauu-

Narne^^'ean^ne^ Robi 11 ard
Title;

CEO

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-2&-A04 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

by.

IuA.VtVV/010/24/2022

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-25-A04 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing

EXHIBIT A - Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide a Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH)
Program in this Agreement that is targeted to serve 12 households comprised
of approximately 20 individuals, at any given time during each one-year grant
period. Participants must be experiencing chronic homelessness, as defined
by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
in 24 CFR 578, or meet the definition of a DedicatedPLUS project criteria, at
project entry, as defined by HUD in 24 CFR 578.3. Services provided must
include, but are not limited to:

1.1.1. Associated administrative services:

1.1.2. Rental assistance; and

1.1.3. Supportive services, including case management, to help
participants obtain and remain in permanent housing (PH).

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available in Grafton, Coos and,
Carroll Counties, and can be provided Statewide, in response to participant's
request to live within the State, but outside the three listed counties.

1.3. For the purposes of this Exhibit A, all references to days must mean business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.4. The Contractor must ensure the program includes, but is not limited to:

1.4.1. Utilization of the Housing First model that ensures:

1.4.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not imposed beyond those
required by federal regulations or state laws; and

1.4.1.2. Participation terminates only for the most severe reasons,
after available options to maintain housing are exhausted,
as detailed in HUD regulations, 24 CFR 578.91.

1.4.2. Development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan
with the participant at Intake and, at a minimum, annually.

1.4.3. Development of an ongoing assessment of Housing and
Supportive Services that is provided to participants in order to
deliver assistance in obtaining necessary skills and resources to
live in the community independently.

1.4.4. Implementation of a Coordinated Entry System, in accordance with
the Continuum of Care (CoC) Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part
578 and as amended.

1.5. The Contractor must work with participants to assess their current housing
and service needs, as well as barriers to attaining housing. Project staff must
coordinate with in-house and community resources to connect pa|4ic^ants

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-25-A04 B-2.0 Contractor Initials

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc Page1of13 Date 10/73/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing

EXHIBIT A - Amendment #4

with available services and resources to ensure PH stability, including
connections to potential income sources and mainstream resources such as,
but not limited to, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), job
readiness and employment programs, child care and Social Security benefits.

1.6. The Contractor must ensure that their staff assist with referrals for substance

misuse, mental health, medical needs, peer suppwrt, or any other need for
referral assistance identified by the participant.

1.7. The Contractor must adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the

HUD Project Application #SF-424.

1.8. The Contractor must actively and regulaiiy collaborate with the Department
to enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program
delivery and policy based on successful outcomes, including annual
performance monitoring of all programs.

1.9. The Contractor must assess project outcomes, to include participants moving
into and retaining permanent housing, as well as participants connections
with community and mainstream services, to increase independence and
household income to sustain permanent housing.

1.10. The Contractor must meet the performance measures as set forth in all
applicable HUD regulations including, but not limited to:

1.10.1. 24 CFR Part 578 CoC Program;

1.10.2. Public Law 102-550; and

1.10.3. CoC approved performance measures for annual monitoring.

1.11. A designated member of BHS will monitor the contractor's ability to meet the
requirements of this Agreement.

1.12. The Contractor must actively participate in reviews conducted by the
Department, onsite or remotely, as determined by the Department, on an
annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department, that must
include, but are not limited to, participant files and financial data to ensure
compliance with contract objectives, state policies and federal regulations.
The Contractor must:

1.12.1. Ensure the Department has access to participant files;

1.12.2. Ensure financial data is available, as requested by the Department;
and

1.12.3. Provide other information that assists In determining contract
compliance, as requested by the Department.

1.13. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR
Part 578.103(b), HUD, the HUD Office of the inspector General, and the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their ai^Qfized
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representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents,
papers, or other records of the Contractor that are pertinent to the (CoC)
grant, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. These
rights of access are not limited to the required retention period, but last as
long as the records are retained.

1.14. The Contractor must adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality
laws, and comply with the approved HUD program application, program
narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed
in the applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) CoC Project
Application approved by HUD.

1.15. The Contractor must cooperate fully with, and must answer all questions
related to this contract from representatives of the state or federal agencies
who may conduct periodic observation and review of performance, activities,
and conduct an inspection of records and documents.

1.16. The Contractor must provide services according to the HUD regulations
outlined in Public Law 102-550 and 24 CFR Part 578 CoC Program and other
written, appropriate HUD policies/directives except for where HUD waivers
are granted.

1.17. The Contractor must ensure participating individuals, youth, and families
meet the definition of homelessness, or at imminent risk of homelessness
qualifications, as defined in HUD regulations, to be eligible for contract
services.

1.18. The Contractor must obtain and retain appropriate documentation regarding
participant qualifications for contract services.

1.19. Per The McKlnney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended by S. 896,
The Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing (HEARTH) Act of 2009,
https://www.hud.qov/sites/documents/HAAA HEARTH.PDF:

1.19.1. The Contractor must utilize the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS) as the primary
reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through this contract.

1.19.2. The Contractor must ensure all programs are licensed to provide
client level data into the NH HMIS or into a comparable database,
per 24 CFR 578, and as detailed in the following publication from
The National Network to End Domestic Violence (NNEDV):
http://Qlhrn.ora/wordpress1/wp-

content/uploads/2018/08/Comparable-Database-for-DV-

NNEDV.pdf
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1.19.3. Programs must follow NH HMIS policy, inciuding specific
information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and
time required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information
Security requirements and Exhibit i for Privacy requirements.

1.20. The Contractor must participate in the regionai and CoC Coordinated Entry
System.

1.21. The Contractor must estabiish and maintain standard operating procedures
to ensure CoC program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and
must establish and maintain sufficient records to enabie HUD and the

Department to determine Contractor compliance, including:

1.21.1. Continuum of Care Records. The Contractor must maintain the

following documentation related to establishing and operating a
CoC:

1.21.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor must

maintain acceptable evidence of homeless status in
accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b):

1.21.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The

Contractor must maintain records that establish "at risk of

homelessness" status of each individual or family who
receives CoC homelessness prevention assistance, as
identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c); and

1.21.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm.

The Contractor must maintain documentation of each

program participant who moved to a different CoC due to
imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined in 24 CFR
578.51(c)(3). The Contractor must retain documentation
that includes, but is not limited to:

1.21.1.3.1. The original incidence of domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, only if
the original violence is not already documented in
the program participant's case file. This may be
written observation of the housing or service
provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral counselor, mental
health provider, or other professional from whom
the victim has sought assistance; medical or
dental records; court records or law enforcement

records; or written certification by the program

—D$

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-26-A04 B-2.0 Conlractor Initials

TfhCounty Community Action Program, inc. Page4of13 Date 10/^3/2022



OocuSign Envelope ID: 8AC6DCE2-CABD-4D06-A534-CC068B673121

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing

EXHIBIT A - Amendment #4

participant to whom the violence occurred or by
the head of household; and

1.21.1.3.2. The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further

domestic violence, dating violence, or sexual
assault or stalking, which would include threats
from a third-party, such as a friend or family
member of the perpetrator of the violence. This
may be written observation by the housing or
service provider; a letter or other documentation
from a victim service provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral counselor, mental
health provider, or other professional from whom
the victim has sought assistance; current
restraining order; recent court order or other court
records; law enforcement report or records;
communication records from the perpetrator of
the violence or family members or friends of the
perpetrator of the violence. Including emails,
voicemails, text messages, and social media
posts; or a written certification by the program
participant to whom the violence occurred or the
head of household.

1.21.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant
who receives housing assistance where rent or an
occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the
Contractor must keep the following documentation of
annual income:

1.21.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and
completed by the Contractor;

1.21.1.4.2. Source documents, which may include the most
recent wage statement, unemployment
compensation statement, public benefits
statement, and bank statements for the assets
held by the program participant and income
received before the date of the evaluation; and

1.21.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are

unobtainable, a written statement by a relevant
third party, which may include an employer or a
government benefits administrator, or written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the
oral verification by the relevant third party of the
income the program participant received^^ the
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most recent period, as per HUD regulation, 24
CFR 578,103; or

1.21.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-
party verification are unobtainable, written
certification by the program participant of the
amount of income that the program participant is
reasonably expected to receive over the three (3)
month period following the evaluation.

1.21.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of
homeiessness status or at-risk-of-homelessness status,
as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each
program participant that document:

1.21.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that
program participant, including evidence that the
Contractor conducted an annual assessment of

services for those program participants that
remain in the program for more than a year and
adjusted the service package accordingly, and
including case management services as provided
in 24 CFR 578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F); and

1.21.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the
termination of assistance requirement in 24 CFR
578.91.

1.21.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain
documentation of compliance with the housing standards
in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including inspection reports.

1.21.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the

types of supportive services provided under the
Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those
services. The Contractor must keep documentation that
the records were reviewed at least annually and that the
service package offered to program participants was
adjusted as necessary.

1.22. The Contractor must maintain records that document compliance with:

1-22.1. The organizational conflict-of-interest reauirements in 24 CFR

578.95(c);

1.22.2. The CoC board conflict-of-interest reauirements in 24 CFR
578.95(b); and

1.22.3. The other conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).
^08
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1.23. The Contractor must develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal
conflict-of-interest policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR
578.95, including records supporting any exceptions to the personal conflict-
of-interest prohibitions.

1.24. The Contractor must comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

1.24.1. The homeless participation requirements In accordance with 24
CFR 578.75(g);

1.24.2. The faith-based activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR
578.87(b);

1.24.3. Affirmatively furthering fair housing by maintaining copies of all
marketing, outreach, and other materials used to inform eligible
persons of the program In accordance with 24 CFR 578.93(c):

1.24.4. Other federal requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

1.24.5. Other records specified by HUD. The Contactor must keep other
records as specified by HUD; and

1.24.6. Procurement requirements In 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

1.25. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security
requirements for HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor must develop and
implement written procedures to ensure:

1.25.1. All records containing protected Identifying information of any
individual or family who applies for and/or receives CoC assistance
are kept secure and confidential;

1.25.2. The address or location of any family violence project, assisted with
CoC funds, are not made public, except with written authorization
of the person responsible for the operation of the project; and

1.25.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant is
not made public, except as provided under a preexisting privacy
policy of the recipient or sub recipient and consistent with state and
local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

1.26. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor must ensure all records, originals
or copies made by microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods,
pertaining to CoC funds are retained for five (5) years following the Contract
Completion Date and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, unless
records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
ftve (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

2. Contract Administration

2.1. The Contractor must have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or
trainings requested by the Department's Bureau of Housing Service^^S),
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including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and
federal laws. To the extent possible, BHS must notify the Contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five (5) working days in advance of each
meeting.

2.2. The Contractor must inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30)
days of the change.

2.3. In the event of early termination of this Agreement, the Contractor must, within
15 days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the Department
a Transition Plan for services under this Agreement, including but not limited
to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under
this Agreement and establishing a process to meet those needs.

2.3.1. The Contractor must fully cooperate with the Department and must
promptly provide detailed information to support the Transition Plan
including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by
the Department relative to the termination of this Agreement and
Transition Plan and must provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the Department, as requested.

2.3.2. in the event that services under this Agreement, including but not
limited to clients receiving services under this Agreement, are
transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the Department, the Contractor must
provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
Transition Plan.

2.3.3. The Contractor must establish a method of notifying clients and
other affected individuals about the transition. The Contractor must
include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the Department, as described above.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor must submit an Annual Performance Report (APR) to the
Department within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date on the
form required, or specified, by the Department.

3.2. The Contractor must ensure the APR is submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

3.3. The Contractor must ensure the APR includes a summary of aggregate
results of the project activities, consistent with the format proposed in the
Contractor's application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice
of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) > D$
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3.4. The Contractor must submit other reports as requested by the Department in
compliance with NH HMIS policy and/or BHS policies and procedures.

3.5. The Contractor may be required to collect and share data with the
Department, in a format specified by the Department, for the provision of
other key data and metrics, including client-level demographic, performance,
and service data, connecting

4. Deliverables

4.1. The Contractor must provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program as
outlined in this Exhibit A, Scope of Services, and other written HUD policies
and directives as appropriate.

4.2. The Contractor must implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in
this Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in accordance with the CoC Program interim
rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

4.3. Project outcomes, for the purpose of acquiring and maintaining permanent
housing, must include, but are not limited to:

4.3.1. Facilitating the transition of participants, experiencing
homelessness, to permanent housing and increased self-
sufficiency;

4.3.2. Participants exiting homelessness faster, and once housed,
remaining stably housed; and

4.3.3. Participants experiencing increased connections to:

4.3.3.1. Mainstream benefit resources, potential income sources,
employment and/or vocational rehab referrals;

4.3.3.2. Mental health and/or substance abuse service access and

referrals; and

4.3.3.3. Service Coordination Partners for educational, vocational,
employment and health needs.

5. Exhibits incorporated

5.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement,
which has been executed by the parties.

5.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement
in accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

>  PS
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5.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

6. Additional Terms

6.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

6.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

6.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

6.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have
hearing loss; Individuals who are blind or have low vision; and
individuals who have speech challenges, submitted to:

NHDHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

6.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

6.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of
New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were
available or required, e.g., the United States Department of Health
and Human Services."

6.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

6.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:
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6.3.3.1. Brochures:

6.3.3.2. Resource directories;

6.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines:

6.3.3.4. Posters; and

6.3.3.5. Reports

6.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under
the contract without prior written approval from the Department.

6.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

6.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the
Contractor must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of
federal, state, county and municipal authorities and with any
direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which
must impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to
the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit must be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said
services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will
at all times comply with the terms and conditions of each such
license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements,
the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term
of this Contract the facilities must comply with all rules, orders,
regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire
Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

6.5. Eligibility Determinations

6.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals, youth, and/ or families such eligibility verifications must
be made in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

6.5.2. Eligibility determinations must be made on forms provided, or
required by the Department for that purpose and must be made
and remade, or reissued at such times as are prescribed by the
Department.

6.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department,
the Contractor must maintain a data file on each participant of
services hereunder, which file must include all information
necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other
information as the Department requests. The Contrac
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furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding
eligibility determinations that the Department may request or
require.

6.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services
hereunder, as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to
a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that all applicants for services must be
permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or
re-applicant must be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in
accordance with Department regulations.

7. Records

7.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

7.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by
the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income
received or collected by the Contractor.

7.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase
requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,
inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

7.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient
of services, which records must include all records of application
and eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for
each such recipient), records regarding the provision of services
and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for
such services.

7.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

7.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services,
and any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports
and records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the
obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by ̂ iterms

hi!
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-25-A04 B-2.0 Contractor lnitialsV,^___

Tfi-County Community Action Program, inc. Page 12 of 13 Date 10/23/2022



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8AC6DCE2-CABD-4D06-A534-CC068B673121

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Permanent Supportive Housing

EXHIBIT A - Amendment #4

of the Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this
Agreement and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) must terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the
Department must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs
hereunder the Department must retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct
the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from
the Contractor.
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SFY23 - 7/1/22-B/30/Z3
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rentdf Assisstsnce S 120,919 t . S S $ - S s 120.919 t - S

Supportive Services $ 57,710 S t S $ S s 67,710 5 . $

Administretlon s 6,147 s i s s . s s e,u7 » . 5

25% Required UatcK s 50.230 s t $ 50.2M s $ s - s

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE s 245,01B t • t i 50.233 5 s s 104,7es s - S

SFV24 - 7/1/23-8/31/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rente! Assisatance $ 20.163 % 9 9 . 9 - 9 S 20.158 9^ *

Suppprtlse Services % 11,206 s $ 9 $ * 9 $ 11.2ft6 ♦
Admenistratipn 1 1,024 $ 3 9 2: $ . S $ 1.024 a - S

25% Required Match s 8 372 s 9 9 6.372 8 9 9' 9

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE i 40.896 9 % $ 8.372 5 . 9 s 32.463 9. 9

TOTAl. 7/1/22*8/31/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Aseisetsnce $ 141.072 t $ 9 $ - S 5 141,or? 9 - $

Supportive SdAiicee S 79,005 9 S i s - s I 79.005 % - S

Administration s 7,171 $ . $ $ t ■ % i 7.171 9 ' 9

25% Required Match s 58.603 9 9 $ 58.605 9 9 $ ' %

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE s 285,853 9 ' 9 S S8.605 $ . 9 s 227,246 9 ■ 9

ToalWfO Match S 227^48

Tri-Ceumy Community Action Program, Inc.
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanian. Secretar>' of Slate ofthe Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMLTNITV

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0005774957

%

10.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampsliire.

this lOth dav of Mav A.D. 2022.

David M- Scanian

Secretary of Stale



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6AC6DCE2-CABD-4D06-A534-CC068B673121

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

_Sandy Alonzo , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerit/Secretary/Gfflcer of _Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on May 21st , 20 22 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard, CEO and or Randall Pllotte, CFO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, lnc._ to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of tiiis Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. f—•^Kusun.d^

^ ̂ 10/11/2022
Dated. > —

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Sandy Alonzo
Title: Board Chair

>  D(KiiSlgn»d ̂

Rev. 03/24/20
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y4CO/;D' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE IWUODrYYYY)

06/2912022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: if the cerdflcate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDmONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
R SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statemerrt on
this certificate does not confer riqhts to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Ekn Street

Manchester NH 03101

Aridrea Nlcklln

(603)669.3218 (603)645-4331

«nf«F*« manch.cerls@cr0ssa9eney.c01n

INSURERISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAice

INSURER A' PHIadelphIa Indemnity Ins Co 18058

WSUREO

Tri-County Community AcUon Program, Inc

30 Exchange Street

Berlin NH 03570

INSURER B; Granite State Health Care and Human Services SeH-

INSURERC:

INSURED;

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THATTHE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSUteD NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
NDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONOmON OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESFECTTO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALLTHETERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUCIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE KEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE IfRfirrli] POLICY NUMBER

POUCYEFF
(Muinn/vYwi

POLICyEM>
wiiwiowmi UMTS 1

A

X COWM^CtALOElNERALLIABIUTY

E  IXi OCCUR

PHPK2433324 07/01/2022 07/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE
S 1,000,000

I CLAIMSMAO pnewsesiEa<w,ma!Wf>
s 100,000

MF.D EXP tAnv tme panml
S 5,000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY
, 1.000.000

(XPH'L AGCflFGATE LfWITAPPLlEa PER: GENERALAGGREGATE
J 3,000,000

POLCr 1 1JECT L—J l-OC
OT>fER:

PRODUCTS-COUP/OPAGG
, 3,000,000

Pro^sional Liability s 1,000,000

A

1 AUTOMOBILE UABIurrV 1

PHPK2433331 07/01/2022 07/01/2023

COMBIHEO SINGLE LIMIT
lEi pcrldani!

S 1,000,000

X ANY AUTO BCOILY INJURY (Parpssanl t

AUTOS ONLY
KJRED

AUTOS ONLY

SC^«DUIED i
^jTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per acOMrt) i

—

NOTf-OWNED
ALfTOfi ONLY

PnOPERIYDAIMGE
IFWacciaentl

t

L
OVr Nveaafc*

%

A \E
UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

PHUB62IKS 07/01/2022 07/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE
, 2,000,000

1 CLAIUSMAOE AGGREGATE
, 2,01X3,000

1 DED 1 Xl RETINTIC.N 1 10-000 t

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIAaiLITY y /
ANYPftOPRIETOR/PARTHSWEXECLmVB rTil
OPFSCSR/MEMBER EXCLiraED? [ ̂  \

In NH) '
If y«s. under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS belOW

H/A HCHS20220000CISa (3a.)NH 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

V" PER 01H-.Pv ST4T1JTF en

EJ.. EACHACCIDENT
, 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
S 1,000,000

e.L. DISEASE . POLICY LIMIT
J 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS r LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES lACORD 191. AcMIUonal RpmarktSchoOulP. rr» be atucnarl H mora ipau li itRulrBd)

Contracts S Procuiemenl

DHHS-Stale of NH

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTAnVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)

G1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and l<qo are registered marks of ACORD
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MISSION STATEMENT

Tri-County Community Action Program

provides opportunities to strengthen

communities by improving the lives of

low to moderate income families and

individuals.

VISION STATEMENT

individuals and families are empowered

to create vibrant communities and

foster self-sufficiency.

VALUES STATEMENT

Tri-County Community Action Program,

values a culture of integrity.

This Includes:

1. Transparency in all our interactions

and communications, stressing

accountability to ourselves as an

organization and to those we serve.

2. Connection to community. We value

our community partners and work

to build strong partnerships that

unite us all In the common goal of

improving the lives of others.

3. Recognition of our mutual humanity.

We treat customers, co-workers

and colleagues with compassion,

fairness, dignity and respect.

4. We value the empowerment of

those who seek our services,

believing that empowerment leads

to improved self-worth and enables

those we serve to fully participate in

their communities and share their

success with others.

^TRI-COUNTY
COMMUNITY ACTION
Serving Coos. Carroll & Grafton Counties since 1965

jKcommunlty

^fncHon
f A n r N £ K SHIP

30 Exchange St., Berlin, NH 03570

Phone: (603) 752-7001

www.tccap.org

I

f.
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Financial Statements

TRI-COUNTY COR/HVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS
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TRI-COUNTY COIVIIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020
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To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate
Berlin, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PBOrLSSlCiNAI. ASSOUATION

CKRTIFIEU I'liSLir .ACCOUNT-WTS

WOLFEROIJO • NORTH COTOY
D0\1-R • CONCOR].!

STRATFaM

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the related
consolidated statements of functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2021 and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Stafemenfs
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30. 2021 and 2020, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited Tri-Counly Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2020
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 28, 2020. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 28, 2020, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

November 19, 2021

North Conway, New Hampshire
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30.2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program
Accounts receivable

Property held for sale
Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assete

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued rximpensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portion

Total liabiilties

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTM. LI^IUTIES AND NET ASSETS

2021

$  3.237.032
1,317,839

1,617,249

216,423

52,985
53.594

6.495.122

12,917,935

(5,650.185)

7.067.750

439.822

2,74Z^180

4.577,505

7.319.685

6,199,624

433,385

6,683.009

2020

$  2,257,081
796,937

1,322,852

47,000

307.017

102,430
77.882

4,911.199

12.344,805

(5.601.944)

6,742.861

384,711

$ 14.002,694 5 12.038,771

$  129,165 S 437,843
o AAd

4,303 18o!427
233,907 243,779
383,435 49,059

266,595 137,304

324,140 181.463

1.400.645 850,982

2.084,411

4.792,557

6,876.968

4,565,253

596.550

5.161.803

S 14,002,694 $ 12.038,771

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVlTteS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grants and contracts

Program hrnding
Udliiy programs
In-kind contnbutions

Conlributions

Fundraising
Rsnlal income

Interest Income

(Loss) gain on disposal of property
Loss on write down of property for sale
Otfier revenue

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, end

net assets released from resbicdons

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:
Agency Fund
Head Start

Guardianship
Transportation
Volunteer

Workforce Development
Carroll County Dental
Support Center
Homeless

Energy and Communl^ Development
Elder

Housing Services

Total program services

Supporting Activities:
General and administrative

Fundraising

Total supporting activities

Total functional expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. »JD OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor 2021

Total

2020

Total

$  t8.296.354
1,177,937
2,659,293
384,580

462,340

1.802

684,169
888

(27.268)

13.364

S  415,058 $ 18,711,410
1,177.937

2,659,293

364,580
462.340

1.802

684.169

888

(27.286)

13,384

$ 14,909.313

1,084.133

1,923.553
455.826

326.215
32.544

635.559

923

257.717

(255,492)
4,379

23.633,439 415,056 24,048,495 19,374,770

628.221 1528,2211 .

24.181.660 <113,1651 24,048,495 19.374.770

1.017.860
2,856.419

760.053

870,078

96.617

40.175
669,641

356.359

4.760.909

8,541.527
1.192,453
192.010

-

1,017,860
2,656,419

760,053

870,078
96,817

40,175
669,641

356,359

4,760,909
8,541,627

1,192,453
192,010

1,047,356
2,769,065
769,597

991,504

94,645
346.114

653,610

558,244

800,148
7.824,201

1.149,136
220.900

21.354.301 21.354.301 17,224,920

1,172,988 -
1.172.968 1,062.613

2.880

1,172.988 1,172,988 l,OK.493

22.527.289 22,627.289 18,290,413

1,834,371 (113,165) 1.521.206 1.084.357

4.665.253 596.550 6.161.803 4.077.449

S  6.199.624 S  483,385 S  6,683.009 S 5.161,806

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4
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TRI^nilWTY COMMUMITY ACTION PROfiBAM IMr AMD AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE '^ARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Loss (gain) on disposal of property
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses
IrKrease (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property

Purchases of property end equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

$  1.521.206 $ 1,084.357

460,040

27.288

(294,397)
90.594

49,445

24.288

(176.124)
(9.872)

334.376

129.281

142,677

549.663

2.838.475

25,000

(780.217)

436,197
(2.225)

(48.769)
(75,856)
(16.544)
(43.645)

(41.144)
39.700

(161,693)
47,780
(15,694)
252,787

1,454,851

4,495

(273.711)

(755.217) (289.216)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment on long-term debt
Repayment on capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for

Interest

(523,740)
(3.554)

(527.294)

1,555,964

3,438.729

(145,884)
(4.671)

(150.555)

1,035.080

2.403.649

$ 4,994,693 S 3.438.729

135.843 131.879

See Notee to Consolidated Financial Statements

7
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TRI-COUNTY COWIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This Includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities Include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.

8
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TRI-COUNTY COIVIMUNITY_ACIim.PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2021 AND 2020

Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri-County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally III, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship,
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVF) maintains
a minimum group of 393 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 225
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 28,000 hours yearly.

Workforce Deveiopment

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.
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The Organization Is helping to Implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Carroll County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Support Cenfer

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They Include; crisis
intervention: supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent Individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.
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Energy Assistance and Outreach
Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

Low-Income Weatherization

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs:
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and Improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 14 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin. New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.
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Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance, Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance. Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit of Cornerstone's
compliance with its major federal program in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the
audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). An unmodified
opinion was issued.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financiai position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $483,385 and $596,550
at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. See Note 13.
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Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and coiiection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program Is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.
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Estimated useful lives are as follovvs:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $324,140 and $181,463 as of June 30. 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code, It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors. The Organization files information returns in the
United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
years after it is filed.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The
Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).
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Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as Instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.
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Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no

unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $216,423 and $307,017,
respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.
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Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various

programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, Insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees, and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.
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The Organization submits an Indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was 10.80%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30, 2021 was approximately 11.37%, which is
allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs It
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $28,130 and
$25,483, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Cosfs." The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2021 and 2020.

Revenue Recognition Pollcv

The Organization derives revenue primarily from grants, contracts, and
contributions. Grants are recognized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that is, In
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced the
most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires
expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of
revenue from cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Organization
adopted the new standard effective July 1, 2020, the first day of the Organization's
fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption did not result in
a change to the accounting for any of the applicable revenue streams; as such, no
cumulative effect adjustment was recorded. See revenue recognition policy above.
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Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronavlrus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent Its
spread continue to affect the Organization's business. The significance of the
impact of these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the
Organization's financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time
that such disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations
that might be imposed in response to the pandemic.

During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and through the date of this
report, the Organization has not experienced a significant decline in revenues, nor a
significant change in its operations.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30. 2021
and 2020:

2021 2020

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 3.237,032 $ 2,257,081
Accounts receivable 1,617,249 1,322,852
Pledges receivable 216.423 307,017

Total financial assets 5.070,704 3,886,950

Less amounts not available to be

used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 483,385 596,550
Less net assets with time restrictions to be
met in less than a year (412.665) {410,015)

Amounts not available within one year 70.720 186,535

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months £ 4.999.984 £ 3.700.415

it is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $3,569,000 and $2,860,000 at June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively.
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NOTES. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total In the statements of
cash flows as of June 30;

Cash, operations
Restricted cash, current

Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash

2021

$ 3.237,032
1,317,839
439.822

2020

$ 2,257,081
796,937
384.711

S 4.994.693 £ 3.438.729

Cash Restrlctioris

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $20,059 and $20,040, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization Is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30.2021 and 2020 was $174,755 and $174,626, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.
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The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $1,317,839 and $796,937, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2021 and 2020
was $1,317,839 and $796,937, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $245,008 and $190,045, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2021 and 2020, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2021 and 2020 consists of weatherization materials,
totaling $52,985 and $102,430, respectively.

NOTES. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30. 2021:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

$ 9,931.953
2,394,489

172,653

418.840

$4,233,084 $5,698,869
1,617,101 777,388

172,653
-  418.840

S 7.067.750
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Property consists of the following at June 30, 2020;

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $ 9,810,288 $3,753,302 $6,056,986
Equipment 2,105,950 1,848,642 257,308
Construction

In progress 4,727 - 4,727
Land 423.840 ; 423.840

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the properly of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value Is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals,

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled
$449,153 and $435,310, respectively.

The Organization had property held for sale at June 30, 2020 amounting to
$47,000, which was classified as a current asset In the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position at June 30, 2020. The total loss on the write down
to fair value of this property was $255,492 in 2020.

NOTE 6. ACCRUED EARNED TIME
For the years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020. employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2021 and
2020, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $233,907 and $243,779,
respectively.
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NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 consisted of
the following:

2021 2020

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, Including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027. $ 96,062 $ 110,824

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $2,936, including interest at 4% per
annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2031. 285,268 307,719

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $459, including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit

that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016 and was paid off during the
year ended June 30,2021. 4,478

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year
ended June 30,2021. - 4,228

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year
ended June 30.2021. - 3,948

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year ended
June 30,2021. - 705
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TRI.COUNTY COMMUNfTY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year
ended June 30. 2021.

2021 2020

7,294

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. This note was paid off during
the year ended June 30. 2021. 387,227

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of fijnds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040. 2,467,774 2,547,308

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047. 1,617,600 1,617,600

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years;
final payment due In August 2047. 250.000 250.000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized debt issuance costs

4,716,704
(10.0441

5.241,331
(10.9311

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

4,706,660
(129.1551

$ 4.577.50.5

5,230,400
(437.8431
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30,2021 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2022 $ 129.155

2023 134,452
2024 139,961
2025 145,697

2026 151,677
Thereafter 4.015.762

£ 4.716.704

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTES. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, which expired in November 2020 and
March 2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company
leased an additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, which expired in May
2021. The assets and liabilities under the capital leases were recorded at the lower
of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets.
The assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The obligations included in capital leases at June 30, 2021 and 2020, consisted of
the following:

2021 2020

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease was
secured by the phone system and matured in
November 2020. $ - $ 1,213

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
Interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease was
secured by a copier and matured in March 2021.

944
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2021 2020

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly Installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease was
secured by a copier and matured in May 2021. : 1-397

3,554

Less current portion : (3.554)

z  S

NOTES. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed In the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest at 5.00% per annum. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2021 and 2020. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space and
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various
starling dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the
Organization has several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For
the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $138,598 and $181,004, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2021, are as follows;

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2022 $ 127.467
2023 65,722
2024 43,884
2025 43,884
2026 42,869

Ttiereafter 3-512
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of In-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind In the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental

payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and slate governments. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
approximately $18,238,690 (76%) and $14,380,020 (74%), respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2021 and 2020, approximately 67% and 68%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future
existence of Comerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding
policies of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.
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NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 216,423 $ 307,017

RAP 174,056 102,998

Restricted Buildings 39,913 85,713

Loans - HSGP 24,403 22.029

FAR/EAR 16,330 24,350

RSVR Program Funds 5,887 5.887

Head Start 5,856 -

RSVR - Matter to Balance 500 500

10 Bricks Shelter Funds 17 -

DOE - 46,287

Donations to Maple Fund - 1,571

Loans - HHARLF - 104

Coronavirus Response 94

Total net assets with donor restrictions S 438.3B5 S  .596.550

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.
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The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action Including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2018 and subsequently, legal actions were brought
against the Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as
of June 30. 2021, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability,
no amount has been accrued by the Organization at this time.

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD, the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $181,723 and $155,278 were held in a segregated account at
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $59,517 and $31,049 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residua! receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits In the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.
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In accordance with the policy noted above, the Organization was required to remit
funds to HUD totaling $31,412 during the year ended June 30, 2020. In addition to
the funds remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual receipts account for equipment during the year ended June 30,2020.

NOTE 16. RECLASSIFICATION
Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reciassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through November
19, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Trl-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroiler Genera! of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial
position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated November 19. 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, mlsstatements on a timely basis. A material wea/cness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's hnancial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of Its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no Instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's Internal control or on compliance. This report Is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards In considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

November 19, 2021
North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTiON PROGRAM. INC.

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PROVtSalONALASSOClt'lON

(JJ<riFiKI) PUSIK, ACCli.NTAiVl'S

VVOLFEBOKO • N'ORTil CONfAY
DOV^R • CONCORD

STRAIUW

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin. New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2021, Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs are
Identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal programs.

Auditors'Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s Internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, inc.'s Internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not Identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of Internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

November 19, 2021

North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-CQUNTY COMIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

1. The auditors' report expresses an unrnodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit,

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, LINEAR - ALN 93.568

U.S. Dept. of the Treasury, Coronavirus Relief Fund - ALN 21.019

U.S. Dept. of the Treasury. ERAP - ALN 21.023

U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development, CoC - ALN 14.267

New Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Electrical Assistance Program (non-Federal)

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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^TRI-COUNTY
' ̂COMMUNITYACTION

Serving Cods, Carrol! & Grafton Counties since 1965

Board of Directors

FY2023

Coos County Carroll County Grafton County

Board Chair

Sandy Alonzo

Business

Brian Hofixnan

Business

Charles Monaghan

Business

Linda Massimilla

Elected Official

Ruth Heintz

Business Attorney

Secretary

Fay Pierce

Low Income

Richard Mcleod

Low Income

Treasurer

George Sykes

Elected Olficial
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Jeanne L. llubillard

TORE STHKXCXnS

Program development, management and administration ♦ Communit\' collaborations
Development of policy, protocol, and sen-ice delivery to meet funder standards

Grant writing and management ♦ Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovative solutions & problem solving ♦ Capacity building

Professional presentations ♦ Public speaking
Dedication ♦ Imagination ♦ Determination ♦ Fortitude

PH0FESS10I^i%E E\PEB1E]\CE

Tri-Coiinl^' Commiinily Action I'rojjrnms, Inc.
Chief Executive Officer

Berlin, IVII 20lit - furroni t''T«»ntploymvnt

Tri-Cuiintv Community Action l*r«»|<rums, inc.
Chief Operating Officer
Berlin, NU 2016 • 2018

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategics to improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri-Countv Community Action Progrnms, inc.
Bivisioii Dir<>clor: TCCAI* Prevention Serviees

llerliu, A'H 2015-3016

Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant repons and financial statements for funders
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategics for programs; represent program through
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service delivery;
coUaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri-Couii(y Commnnily Aclion Programs, inc.
Progrnm/llivision Director: Support Center at Bnrch lionse
Littleton, IScw Ilampsliire 2007- 2015

Oversee daily operation and supcndsion of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for funders and parent agenq-; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
fundraising and marketing strategies; participate in stare and locaJ collaborations to enhance victim
services; represent program in state and federal victim service initiatives, including presentation of
l^slativc testimony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.
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JL Robillard * 2

Bookkeeper: Wonien'M Rural Entrepreneurial iVetwork 11VRE!M1
Bethlehem, IVB eurrcnt l*T employment

Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accounts,
credit cards, pett}- cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

Tri-County Community Action Profilrains. Inc.
Direct Services/Volunteer Coordinator: Support Center at Bnrch Douse
Littleton, ISew Hampshire 1997 to 2007

Provide advocacy and direct seiwice to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supcndse staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach presentations and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-I2 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: Hoverhill Area Juvenile Diversion Pro||ram

Woodsviile, IMcw Hampshire 1999-2001

Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships between the court
system, juvenile ser\'ice officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Connselor/Title I Teacher: Northern Family lostitutc*Jelferson Shelter
Jefferson, New Hampshire 1996-1999
Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Education

BS in Human Services, Spriii|;fieid Folicge .School of liiinian Services, Boston, AL\
Criminal justice Concentration, Graduattdivitb 4.0 CPA

AS in Uruy and Alcohol Rehabilitation Counseling fHARC Program^
Sonthern Connecticut Community College, N(*w Haven, CT

Additional Skills. Professional Leadership and Civic Affiliations

♦ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Elected 2006-2010

♦ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Treasurer 1996-1998
♦ Chairman, Haverhill Area Family Violence Council 1998-2003

♦ Certified PRIMEi FOR I.IFH Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199
♦ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; Ind'tridual Member 2008-2017
♦ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 2015
♦ Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - current

♦ Granite United Way, North Countr)'Cabinet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011
♦ Bethlehem Citizen's Advisor)- Committee on Recycling 2007-2010

♦ ] acensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Business Owner; Aurora Energies 2015-current
♦ Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/ Sweet jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997-current
♦ Member, United States Figure Skating Association/International Skating Institute current since 1993
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Randall S. Pilotte

Summary

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies include;

Financial Statements Accounts Payables Inventory Fixed Assets
Payroll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables Sales/Use Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting

Experience

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.. Berlin, NH 06/2013-Present

CFO (2017-Present)

Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify performance goals for the Agency and to
maintain systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial management systems and activities of the Agency with a budget of $18M.
•  Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside

regulatory agencies.
• As a member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finance

policies, objectives and programs.
•  Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,

coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performance reviews of Tri-County CAPs divisions.
• Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee perfonnance within the department; recommend promotions and salary

adjustments.

•  Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, er^uring that all mortgages, leases and
covenants are maintained for Tri-County CAP'S facilities. Creation of five-year capital plan.

•  Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitor investments associated
with each property.

•  Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

Fiscal Director/Interim CFO (2016-2017)
• Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts

payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets.
•  Prepare and supervise the production of financial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense

Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.
• Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting and expense

tracking to support periodic monitoring's by funders and auditors.
•  Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts are analyzed and reconciled periodically.
•  Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget.
• Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing

departmental goals.
•  Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.
•  Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)

RANDALL PILO ITE RESUME:
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KENT NUTRITION GROUP. INC. (f/k/a Blue Seal Feeds. IncX Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/2010

Assistant Controller (2005-2010)

•  Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
individual financial statement in accordance with GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

• Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

• Oversaw all aspects of proprietary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk.

•  Interfaced with 18 various banks througlioul New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.
•  Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point of contact for audits.
•  Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.
• Oversaw month-end accruals.

• Assisted and responded to auditors' requests on annual audit.
•  Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller's initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant(1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM. INC.. Concord. NH 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, Franklin Pierce College. Concord, NH
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SARAH WIGHT

EXPERIENCE

April 2021-Present

Department Head Housing Stebility, TRI-COUNTY COMMUNfTY ACTION

2019-April 2021

PROGRAM DIRECTOR {DIVISION DIRECTOR) ENERGY ASSISTANCE SERVICES, TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITy

ACTION

•  Ensure the Energy Assistance Program's contracts and Federal guidelines are followed by all
employee's within the program

•  Create and Track Budgets for the program, staying within the programs contracted amount

•  Attend monthly/quarterly meetings with the Office of Strategic Initiatives and Neighbor
Helplr^ Neighbor

•  Update Department Head of any changes or issues that arise

FEBRUARY 2014-2019

ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM MANAGER, TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION

Supervise the processing of the Fuel and Electric Applications
Oversee staff members of the Energy Assistance Services Program

Interview and hire staff.

Work with Office Coordinators with disciplinary actions and/or plans

Have a professional relationship with outside agencies, town ofRces and state programs
Submit weekly and monthly reimbursement request

AUGUST 2010- FEBRUARY 2019

CERTIFIER, TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION
•  Verify that submitted Fuel and Electric Applications are processed correctly and all required

Information is included

•  Ensure the State Manual Is known and followed when processing applications

•  Have a professional relationship with vendors and landlords with mutual clients
•  Make referrals to other programs or agencies that can assist cl«nts further

AUGUST 2009 - August 2010

FRONT DESK/DATA ENlTtY, ANDROSCOGGIN VALLEY HOSPITAL

•  Answer telephone and in person questions

•  Enter dally charges and payments

•  Update spreadsheets with Medicare and Medicatd payments
•  Process refunds
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SHERETTA DAVIS

EXPERIENCE

March 2019 - FYesent

Program Director Homeless Intervention & Prevention -Tri-County CAP

•  Processing of applications for aU Housing Stability programs for approval and preparing
check requests.

•  Assisted Domestic Violence victims who resided at Support Center at Burch House with
obtaining stable housing, enrolled them in HUD-RRH program, provided ongoing case
management, and making sure all files were in compliance with the Coalition reporting
standards.

•  Processing and approval of all NH Housing Relief Program applications to ensure
stabilized housing during the COVID-19 pandemic.

•  Building relationships with multiple landlords within Grafton, Coos, and Carroll
Counties.

•  Supervising the case managers and outreach workers to ensure they are meeting the
program deliverable for homeless intervention & prevention, and complete billing
invoices within the division for entry into HMIS & Empower.

July 2015 - Present

Accounting, Dax/is & Brothers Associates

•  Preparation of Individual/Business tax returns. Responsible for new customer
development and customer service.

•  Printing and distribution of tax refund checks, assisting clients with documents
requested by IRS and follow up calls to clients.

•  Training new tax preparers on policies and procedures.

EDUCATION

May 2008

M.B.A in Arxounting, Everest University
Studying of accounting and procedures

SKILLS

•  Bookkeeping • Office Management 86 Administration

.  Customer Service {On Site 86 Virtual) ' Accounts Payable 86 Accounts
Receivable

•  Payroll ^ Assistant Manager
•  Office Management 86 Administration

.  Human Resource. Interviewing 86 Hiring, ' Tax Preparer, Valid PTIN
Employee Training • Document Coder

COMMUNICATION

Excellent communication, organizational, and project management skills. PC proficient with

MS Office, QuickBooks, Peachtree, Inforum Gold, and Microstep.
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Tri-Couoty Community Action Program, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid fiom

this Contract

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $120,000 0% 0

Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer $85,000 0% 0

Sarah Wight Department Head $59,980 7% $4,198.74

Sheretta Davis Program Director $45,000 18% $8,100
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Lort A. ShlMatRt

Cenmtttlomr

Kirea C. Hcbtrt

Wrtclor

JUN1<1'22 pril2s58 RCVD

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STA BlUTY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27I-9474 l-800-8S^3345 EiL 9474

rai:003-271'4230 TDD Accen: 1-800-735.2964 www.dhhs.nhtov

June 3, 2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

StatiS House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend existing contracts with the contractors listed below, to continue
providing Permanent Housing and Coordinated Entry Programs to individuals, youth, and/or
families who are at risk of or experiencing hometessness, by increasing the total price limitation
by $2,201.519 from $5,655,683, to $7,857,202, and extend the completion dates by one (1) year
as specified in the table below, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal
Funds.

The original contracts and subsequent amendments were approved by the Governor and
Executive Council as Indicated in the table below.

Vendor Name

&Code

Area

Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Current

Completion
Date

Revised

Completion
Date

6&C History

Community
Action

Partnership of
Strafford

Courjty,
Dover, NH

#177200-8004

Statewide $115,572 $36,524 $154,096
June 30,

2022

June 30.
2023

O: 6/19/19

(item #46}

A1; 5/6/20

(Item #37)

A2; 6/30/21

(item #47)

Community
Action

program
Belknap-
Merrimack

Counties, Inc.,
Concord. NH

#177203-8003

Statewide $260,166 $86,722 $346,888
June 30,
2022

June 30.
2023

0: 6/19/19
(Item #46)

A1; 5/6/20
(item #37)

A2: 6A30/21

(Item #47)

The Deparlment ofHtaUh and Human Seruiat' Miesian i* loJoin cemmunitiee and famiiia
in providing opporiuniliti for citaent to achieve huUh and independence.
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His Excellency. Govemof Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hwrable CouncN

Page 2 of 4

Vendor Name

&Code

Area

Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
' Revised

Amount

Current
Completion
' Date

Revised

Completion
Date

GAC History

Families in

Transition
Manchester,

NH

#157730-8001

Concord 5205.755 $66,565 $274,340
June 30,

2022

June 30,

2023

0; 6/19/19

(Item #46)

A1: 5/6/20

(Hem #37)

A2: 6/30/21

(Item #47)

The Lakes
Region Mental
Health Center,

Inc..

Laconia. NH

#154460-8001

Laconia $309,216 $112,362 $421,578
June 30,
2022

June 30,
2023

0; 6/19/19

(Item #46)

A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)

A2; 6/30/21

(Item #47) -

Southwestern

Community
Services, Inc..

Keene, NH

#177511-R001

ChesNre &

Sultivan

Counties

$416,394 $160,339 $596,733
August 31.

2022

August 31.
2023

0; 6/19/19

(item #46)

A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)

A2: 12/2/20

(Item #11)

A3 6/30/21
(Item #47)

Southwestern

Community
•Services, Inc.,'

Keene, NH

#177511-R001

Statewide 3259,656 $86,552 $346,208
June 30,
2022

June 30,.

2023

0: 6/19/19

(Item #46)

A1: 5/6/20 -

(Item #37)

A2:6/30/21

(Item #47)

Southwestern

Community
Services, Inc..

Keene, NH

#177511-RQ01

Cheshire &
Sullivan

Counties

$662,404 $307,144 $1,169,548
June 30,
2022

June 30,
2023

0: 6/19/19

(Item #46)

A1: 5/8/20
(Item #37)

A2: 6/30/21

(item #47)
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Vendor Name

& Code

Area

Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Current

Completion
Date

Revised

Completion
Date

Q&C History

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Oerry, NH

#174116-R001

Western

Rbckingham
County

$627,013 $299,319 $1,126,332
June 30.

2022

June 30.
2023

0: 6/19/19

(item #46)

A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37) -

A2: 6/30/21

(Item #47)

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Oerry, NH

#174116-RCK)1

Westem

Rockingham
&Coos

Counties

$1,738,004 $600,751 $2,638,755
July 31.
2022

July 31.
2023

0: 6/19/19

(Item #46)

A1: 5/6/20

(Itern #37)

A:2 12/2/20

(Item #10)

A3 6/30/21

(Item #47)

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc.,

Berlin. NH

#177195-8009

Statewide $392,466 $130,822 $523,268
June 30.
2022

June 30.

2023

O: 6/19/19

(Item #46)

A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)

A2: 6/30/21

(Item #47)

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc.,

Beiiin, NH

#177195-8009

Gratton,
Cocs&

Carroll
Counties

$269,037 $90,399 $359,436
June 30,
2022

June 30,
2023

0: 6/19/19

(Item #46)

A1; 5/6/20

(Item #37)

A2:6/30/21

(Item #47)

Total: $S,6SS.683 $2,201,519 $7,857,202

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget tine items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The Department is extending the completion dates of the contracts by one (1) year. The
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) directs the Department to provide
the funding to contradors that previously applied to HUD for Continuum of Care prograrn funding.
HUD reviewed the applications and subsequently awarded funding based on its criterta and the
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Department is directing said funds to the Contractors through this request, it is for this reason that
the Department is seeking to extend these agreements even though there are no renewal options
currently available. The start date of the resulting grant is based on the month in which each
grant's original federal agreement was issued. This results in Continuum of Care Program grant
start dates, and subsequent extensions, occurring in various months throughout the year.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing Permanent Housing and Coordinated
Entry Programs that deliver rental assistance, leasing assistance, .or operations furKling as well
as access to supportve services to individuals, youth and families wtio are experiencing
homelessness. Approximately 1,500 households will be served during State Fiscal Years 2023
and 2024.

The contractors support the primary goals of the Continuum of Care Pemianent Housing
and Coordinated Entry Programs, which are to provide housing supports while identifying and
engaging unsheltered homeless persons and persons at imminent risk of homelessness. The
contractors will continue facilitating the movement of participants to shelter and permanent
housing while providing connections to community and mainstream services in order to maximize
participants' abilities to live more independently.

Using the federally required Housing First model, the Contractors provide Housing
Stability Case Management and facilitates each participant's relocation to sustained permanent
housing. Additionally, the Contractor works to maximize each participant's ability to live more
independently by providing connections to community and mainstream services. The
Department will rrtonitor services by;

Conducting annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

Reviewing semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic
information, as well as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

Reviewing data entered into the New Hampshire Homeless Management
Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities
of shelter and housing programs.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families
experiencing homelessness In unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Departrhent will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for these and other types of permanent housirtg and supportive service programs.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN#
NH0020L1T002114. NH0057L1T002112. NH0096L1T002106. NH0007L1T002114.
NH0013L1T002114. NH0003L1T002114. NH0014L1T002114. NH0019L1T002114

In the event that the Federal Funds become r\o longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lo Shibinette -

Conkrijssioner ^
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95^2-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,

HH5: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM
100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42307418 $38,524.00 SO.OO $38,524.00

2021 102-600731 Contracts for Program Seri4ces 42307421 S38.524.00 SO.OO S38.S24.00

2022 074-500589 .Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307424 538.524.00 SO.OO S38.S24.00

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBO SO.OO $38,524.00 S38.S24.00

Sub Total $115,572.00 S38.524.00 S154.096.00

177203-B003

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class r Account Class Ttlle Job Number Current Amount

Increase -

(Decreasel
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42307418 S86.722.00 SO.OO S86.722.00

2021 102-600731 Contracts (or Program Services 42307421 S86.722.00 SO.OO $86,722.00

2022 074-600569 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307424 S88.722.00 SO.OO $86,722.00

2023 074-600589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD SO.OO S86.722.00 $86,722.00

Sub Tolaf S260.166.00 $86,722.00 $346,688.00

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number • Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42301508 S68.585.00 SO.OO 1  $68,585.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42301S10 S68.585.00 $0.00 $68,585.00

2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42301512 568.585.00 SO.OO $68^585.00

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD SO.OO S68.585.00 S68.585.00

Sub Total $205,755.00 $88,565.00 $274,340.00

State Fiscal-

Year
Class/Account Class TlUe Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42307512 $99,635.00 $0.00 $99,835.00

2021 102-500731 COntracIs for Program Services 42307514 $1.02.211,00 SO.OO $102,211.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42307517 $107,170.00 SO.OO $107,170.00

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD SO.OO $112,362.00 S112.362.00

Sub Total .  $309,216.00 $112,352.00 $421,578.00

State Fiscal

Year
Class/.Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308208 $453,606.00 SO.OO S4S3.606.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42306210 $523 538.00 SO.OO $523,538.00

'  2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42306212 S292.036.00 $0.00 $292,036.00

2022 074-500585 Contracts for Program Services 42307812 $154,330.00 $0.00 $154,330.00

2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307424 S66.5S2.00 SO.OO $86,552.00

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD SO.OO S393.606.00 $393,696.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub AssI and Relief TBD $28,392.00 1150.283.00 $178,675.00

2024 074-500585 Grants for Pub AssI and Relief TBD SO.OO S30.056.00 $30,056.00

Sub Total S1.538.454.00 SS74.03S.00 $2,112,489.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 2
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

The Mental Health Center for Soulhem New HampsKire 174116-R001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Numt»ef Current Amount

increase

(Decrease!
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 42307612 $540,665.00 $0.00 $540,665.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42302403 $925,837.00 $0.00 $925,837.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42302406 $286,119.00 $0.00 $266,119.00
2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Assi and Rellel 42302121 $749:227,00 $0.00 $749,227.00

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assi and Relief TBO $0.00 $299,319.00 $299,319.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Assi and Relief T8D $63,169.00 $734,022.00 $797,191.00
2024 074-500585 Grants for Pub Assi and Relief TBO $0.00 $66,729.00 $66,729.00

Sub Total $2,565,017.00 $1,100,070.00 $3,665,087.00

Tri Counly Community Action Pronram, Inc. 177195-B0O9

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-SC0731 Contracts for Program Services 42307418 $219,781,00 so.oo $219,781.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42307421 $220,501.00 so.oo $220,501.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBO $90,399.00 so.oo $90,399.00

2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Assi and Relief 42307424 $130,822.00 $0.00 $130,822.00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and ReKel TBO $0.00 $221,221.00 $221,221,00

Sub Total $68r.503.00 $221,221.00 $882,724.00

Overall Tolall $5.655,683.001 $2.201,516.00! $7.857.202.00|

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 2o'2
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care. Permanent Supportive Housing I. Expansion Program
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #46), as amended on May 6,2020 (Item #37). and as amended on June 30, 2021,
(Item #47), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph IS.'the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herejn, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read;

June 30, 2023

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$359,436

3. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4., to read:

1.2-4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1 NH0020L1T001811 (SPY 2020) Grant Year 1

1.2.4.2. NH0020L1TOai912 (SFY 2021) Grant Year 2

1.2.4.3. NH0020L1T002013 (SFY 2022) Grant Year 3

1.2.4.4. NH0020L1T002114 (SFY 2023) Grant Year 4

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.7., Subparagraph"'1.2.7.1.
to read:

1.2.7.1 Not to exceed $359,436

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Pemianent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8., to read;

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

July 1. 2019 - Julv 1. 2020 - July 1. 2021 - July 1.2022-

June 30. 2020 June 30.2Q21 June 30. 2022 June 30.2023

1.2.8.1.- Rental Assistance $55,440 $56,160 $56:880 $56,880

1.2.8.2. Supportive Services $29,586 $29,586 $29,586 $29,586

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses $3.933 $3.933 33.933 S3.933
1.2.8.4. Total Program Amount $88,959 $89,679 $90,399 $90,399

Tii-County Communlly Action Pfogram. Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

SS-2020-BHS-04-PeRMA-25-A03 Page 1 of 3 Date

OS
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon'Governor and Council approval. .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Senrices

6/3/2022

Date

"^DocuSlgned by:

■ taCUCMIMMH.i

NameV®''®" nebert
Title; Division Director

6/3/2022

Date

TrisCfiiui3ty,fipmmunity Action Program, Inc.

Juuuu.

Title: CEO

-Tri-Counly Community Action Program. Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-2&-A03 Page 2 Of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

by:

6/6/2022 I
^te Name:''^°'^y"

Title; Attorney

r hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Tri-Counly Community Action Proflfam. Inc. A-S-1.2

SS.2020-BHS.04-PERMA-25-A03 Page 3 of 3
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j  STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILm

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
M)-37l-M74 I400^-334S Esl 9474

Fn: (03-37I-41M TDDAcnw 1-000-735-1904 www.dlib*.aIi.|ov

HI

June IS, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Chrielopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Statxiity, to enter Into Sole Source amendments with the three (3) Vendors listed in Bold
in the table below and amend the remaining contracts, by exercising renewal options to extend
the completion dates as reflected in the table below, to continue to provide Pemnanent Housing
and Coordinated Entry Programs to Indiiriduals, youth, and/or families v^c are at hsK of or
experiencing homeiessness, and by increasing the total price limitation by $^335,227 from
$3,846,823 to $8,184,050, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on June 19. 2019, Item
#48. and were subsequently amended with Governor and Council approval on May 6,2020, item
#37. The contracts highBghted in bold, were amended with Governor and Council approval, in
die order tftey appear below, on November 18. 2020, item #17, and on December 2, 2020 item
#11 and Hem #10 respectiveiy.
Vendor Name &

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Current

Completion
Date

Reidsed
Comptetlen
0^

Community Action
Partnership

. Strafford County.
.  Dover, NH

Stmewide $77,048 $38,524 $115,572
June 30,
2021

June 30.

2022

f

?

#177200-8004 I
a

Community Action
Program Belknap-

Merrimack
Counties, Inc.,
Cor\cord, NH

statewide $173,444 $86,722 $280,168
June 30,
2021

Juns 30.
2022

i

i

#177203-8003 1

FrUNHNH, Inc.,
Mencheeter, NH

•1S7730-B001

Concord $308,453 $219,918 $529,387
August 31,

2021

August 31,
2022 5

J

FIT/NHNH. Inc..
Manchester, NH

#157730-8001

Cohdord $137,170 $88,585 $205,755
June 30,
2021

June 30.

2022

i
1

/

4

i

TTv DtponmtidofHtalihond Human Siiinea'Miuioa il to join wmmuniiiw anatomiiia
■n prouiding opporlanititi lor to Othitut htallh and indtpindtnei.
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The Lakes Region
Mental Health

Center, Inc..

Laoonia NH

«154480-8001

Lsconia 5202.046 5107.170 5309.218
June 30.
2021

Jur^ 30.
2022

Southwestern

Community
Services, Inc.,
Keens, NH

CheshlrsS

Sullivan

Counttos

1246,042 5170,352 5416,394
August 31.

2021

August 31,
2022

Southwestern

Comrixinlty
Services. Inc.,
Keene, NH

#177511-R001

Statewide 5173.104 586.552
1

5259.856
June 30.
2021

June 30.

2022

Southwestern
Community

Services, Inc.,
Keene, NH

#177511-8001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

5570.368 5292.036 5662.404 June 30.
2021

Jurw 30,
2022

The Mental Health
Center (Or Southern

New Hampshire
Deny. NH

#174116-8001

Western -

RocKingham
County

5540.694 5286.119 5827,013
June 30,
2021

June 30.
2022

The Mental HeaKh
Center for

Southern New

Hampshire
Derry, NH

#174118-8001

Westam
Rocklngham
SCoos

Countlee

5979,975 5758.031 51.738,004
July 31,
2021

July 31.
2022

Tri-County
Community Mion
Program Inc.
Berlin, NH

•177105-8009

Statewide 5261.644 5130.822 5302.466
June 30.
2021

June 30.
2022

Tri-County
Community Action
Program inc.,
Berlin, NH

#177105-6009

(

GraRon.

Coos. &
Carroll

Counties

5178.636 v5W.3^ (5269.0321
June 30.

'Ml
June 30.
2022

Total: 53,848,623 52,338,227 58.184.060
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Funds are antidpated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2022
and State Fiscal Year 2023, upon the availability and continued appropriating of funds in the hiture
grating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and
encumt^nces between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-afr42423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS. HHSi HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSINO, HOUSINO - SKELTER PROGRAM

State

FlscaJ

Year

Ctoaa/

Account
Class Tide

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

BudgM

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

^ogSvcs
TBO 51,606.764 $0 $1,606,764

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

ProgSvcs
TBD $2,145,410 $0 $2,146,410

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD $98,649 $2,215,928 $2,312,677

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Proa Svcs
TBD $0 $119,299 $119,299

Total: $3,848,823 $2,335,227 $6,184,050

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the OeparVnent is seeking to extend the existing
contracts the three (3) vendors listed in bold above beyond the renewal options available to
align with the r^sed Federal award dales. Federal regulations require the Department to Identify
each vender, by name, during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application
process, prior to the grant awards being issued. A competitive process occurs at the Federal level
end the Department detivers the funding to the Contractors through these agreements.
Specifically, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development reviews the applications
and subsequently awards funding tmsed on pre^tablished criteria.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing Pemrtaneni Housing and Coordinated
Entry Programs that deliver rental and leasing assistance, and access to supportive and other
services to individu^s who are experiencing homelessness. The vendors support the primary
goals of the Continuum of Care Permanent Housing and Coordinated Ertiry Programs, which are
to provide housing supports while Identifying and engaging unsheKered homeless persons and
persons at imminent risk of homelessness, as well as providing basic interventions sudt as food
and referrals to services and to facilitate their movement to shelter, permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

Approximately 3,400 homeless individuals, or individuals at Imminent risk of
homelessness, will be served from July 1, 2021. to August 31,2022.

The vendors will facilitate the movement of participants to shelter and permanent housing
while providing connections to community and mainstream services in order to maximize
participants' abilities to live more independently. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts
to address the problems of housing and homelessness In a coordinated, compreherxsive and
strategic manner.
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Tbe Oepartment wHI monitor contracted senricee using the following reports and
Information:

♦ Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

Semi>annuai statisticat reports, including various demographic information, as weii
as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

Data entry Into the New Hampshire Honwiess Management Information System,
whtoh is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2.,
Renewal, Paragraph 2.1., of the original contracts, parties have the option to extend the
agreements for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory deirvery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parlies and Governor and Coundt approval. The Department
la exercising its option to renew services with nine (9) contractors for the one remaining year
avaltatrie. As noted above, the Department Is seeking to extervi the agreements with FIT/NHNH,
Inc. artd Southwestern Community Ser^ces, Inc., for one (1) year and only ten (10) months of
renewal is available in each contract arxl to extend the contract with the Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire by one (1) year and only 11 months of renewal is available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable IrKlividuals and families in
unsafe or deadly situations without a safety r»et. Additiortally. K data is not collected, as required
by these contracts, the Department will t>e incompliant with federal regulations, which could resuR
In a loss of federal furxiing for these and other types of homeless and permanent housing
supportive services.

Area servred; Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFOA #14.267, PAIN #s. NH0096L1T00200S. NH0003L1T002013.
NH0013L1T002013, NH0020L1T002013. NH0007L1T002013, NH0019L1T002013.
NH0014L1T002013. NH0060L1T002008, NH0057L1T002011.

In the event that the Federal Funds be«xne no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Reepedfulty submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Ham pshire '
Department of Kealtfi and Human Services

Amendment 02

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care. Permanent Supportive Housing t. Expansion Program
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc., ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019. (Item #45), as amended on May 6, 2020 (Item #37). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1 Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2, Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council: and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
if) the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 Genera! Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 3D, 2022

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$269,037

3. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Pemtanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1.2.4., to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers;

1.2.4.1 NH0020L1T001811 (Grant Yearl)

1.2.4.2. NH0020L1T001912 (Grant Year 2)

1.2.4.3. NH0020L1T002013(GrantYear3)

4. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2,7.. Subparagraph 1,2.7.1.
to read:

1.2.7,1 Not to exceed $269,037

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8,, to read:

1.2.6. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program:

Grant Year 1 Grant Year 2 Grant Year 3

1.2.8.1. Rental Assistance $55,440 $56,160 $56,880

1.2.8.2. Supportive Sen/ices $29,586 $29,586 $29,586

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses $3.933 $3.933 $3.933

1.2.6.4. Total Program Amount $88,959 $89,679 $90,399

5SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-25-A02 Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. Contractor tnitiafs

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 3 Dale
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In ̂ 11 force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1,2021. subject to Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,
;

state of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/15/2021

Date
fc inowmffCOCln

Name: Christine santanietlo

Title: Director

6/9/2021

Date

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.

Name: leanne Robillard

Title: CEO

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERWA-25-A02 Tri-Counly Community Acbon Program. Inc.

A-S-1,0 Page 2 ol 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/15/2021

ng-iawMMU*^

Dale Name: Catherine Pinos

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-25-A02 Tri-County Community /tetion Progfam, Inc
A-S-1.0 Page 3 Of 3
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L«ri A. ShlMatiit

ConnUiioner

Chritlint L SaaliflMUa

OlfMier

ftPR23'20pfi 2^43 DflS
•  • n

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ,

DimiONOFECOliOMIC A HOUSINGSTABiUTY

»2« PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03M1
.  . 603-Z7I.94T4 I40MS2.334S Cxi. 9474

Ftz:<03-27M]30 TDDAkms: I400-73S-2964 www.(lhh».nli.Kev

April 22. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hortorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department ot Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend existing Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below to
provide Permanent Housing artd Coordinated Entry Programs and Supportive Services to
individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of
Care Prograrn, by exercising contract renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by
$1,657,969 from $1,606,764 to $3,264,733 and by extending the completion dales from June 30,
2020 to June 30, 2021 effective July 1.2020 or upon Governor and Council approval, v^ichever
is later. The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, item
MAS. 100% Federal Funds.

51

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Community
Action

Partnership
Strafford

County,
Dover, NH

177200-

B004
Statewide $38,524 $38,524 $77,048

Community
Action

Program
Beiknap-
Merrimack

Counties. Inc.,
Concord, NH

177203-

8003
Statewide $86,722 $66,722

i

$173,444

FIT/NHNH,

Inc.,
Mar>chester,

NH

157730-

B001
Concord -  $99,046 $10.1,469 $200,515

FITyNHNH,

Inc.,
Manchester,

NH

157730-

8001
Concord $68,585 $68,585 $137,170

TXeDepoMmcnl ofHallh and //iinnn Striritti'Mittion i» U Jain eammunilia and foinilie$
in providing cpi»rtunUit$ lor eib'ieiii to oehitvt htelth and iiultpcndenee.
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The Lakes

Region Mental
Health Center,

Inc.,

Laconia. NH

154480-

B001
Laconia $99,635 $102,211 $202,046

Southwestern

Community
Services, Inc.,
Keene, NH

177511-

R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$85,230 $87,728 $172,958

Southwestern

Community
Services, inc.,
Keene. NH

177511-

R001
Statewide $86,552 $86,552 $173,104

Southwestern

Community
Services, inc..

Keene. NH

177511-

ROOl

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$261,624 $288,544 $570,368

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Oerry, NH

174116-

R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$267,435 $273,459 $540,894

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Deny, NH

174116-

ROOl

Western

Rockingham
County

$273,230 $303,674 $576,904

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc.,
Bertln, NH

177195-

B009
Statewide $130,822 $130,822 $261,644

Tri-Counly
Community

Action

Program Inc..
Berlin, NH

177195-

B009

Grafton.

Coos, and

Carroll

Counties

$86,959 $89,679 $178,638

Total; $1,606,764 $1,657,969 $3,264,733
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His Excenency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 4

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021. with the authority
to adjust budget tine items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05<9S-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES. HHS; HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-
SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $1,606,764 $0 $1,606,764

2021 102-S00731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $0 $1,657,696 $1,657,696

Total $1,608,764 $1,657,969 $3,264,733

\
EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to
specify each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal
application process, prior to the grant award tjeing issued. Annually, the US Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUO) oversees a Continuum of Care Program competitive
appiicalion process. As pan of this process, the Department is required to provide HUD with each
potential vendor and HUD evaluates vendor applications. Based on that evaluation process, HUD
directs the Department to provide grant awards and the specific amounts to vendors. As
previously stated, the original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19. 2019.
Item #46.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing Permanent Housing and Coordinated
Entry Programs that deliver rental and leasing assistance, access to suf^rtive services and other
services to individuals who are experiencing homelessness.

Approximately 3,000 individuals will be served from July 1, 2020 to July 1. 2021.

Vendors facilitate movement of participants into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream services in order to maximize participants'
abilities to live more independently. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to address the
problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive and strategic manner.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures:

•  Annual reviews relating lo compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information and
income and.expense reports, to include match dollars.

• All vendors funded through these contracts will report through the timely and
accurate entry of data into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information
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and the Honorable Council

Paseeole

System, unless the vendor is required by law to use an alternate means of data
collection. This will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of
shelter and housing programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2.,
Renewal, of the original contracts, the parties have Uie option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2} additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one {1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer
permanent housing options and homeless outreach services available, leaving individuals and
families that are vulnerable in unsafe and deadly situations without a safety net. Additionally, if
data is not collected as required by these contracts, the Department will be in non-compliance
with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types
of homeless and permanent supportive services.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA# 14.267/FAIN# NH0014L1T001912. NH0057L1T001910.
NH0060L1T001907, NH0096L1T001904

Respectfully submitted

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner \
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Permanent Supportive Housing I. Expansion Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment ffi to the Continuum of Care, Permanent Supportive Houeing I. Expansion Program

This 1" Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Permanent Supportive Housing I, Expansion Prograrn
contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment er) is by and betwaan the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health artd Human Services (hereinaher referred to as the 'Slate' or 'Department*) and
Tri'County Communily Action Program, inc.. (hereinafter referred to as 'the Contractor'), a nonprofit
corporation with a place of business at 30 Exchange St, Berlin. NH. 03570.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreernent (the 'Contract') approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19. 2019. (item fM6), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms end
conditions specified in the Contract and In considerelion of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. 'General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibil C-1. Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Secilorl 2., Renewal, the Contrecl may be .amended end extended upon
whttsn agreement of ihe.padiea and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree tq amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Compleiidn Dale, to read; ■'

June 30.2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1,8. Price Umllalion. to read:
$178,638

3. Eidiibil B. Meihods_and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Supportive
Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1.2.4., to read:
1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1. NH0020L1T001811

1.2.4.2. NHOQ20L1T001912

4. Exhibit 8. Methods .and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Supporttve
Housing Progi^m Funding, Subsection 1.2,, Paragraph 1.2,7,, Subparagr^h 1.2.7.1., to read:
1.2.7.1 Nol to exceed $ 178,638

5. Exhibil B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Supportive
Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1,2.0., to reed:
1.2.6. Funds allocelion under this agreement for Continuum'ofCare Program;

Grant Year 1 Grant Year 2
1.2.8.1. Rental Assistance $55,440 $56,160
1.2.6.2. Supportive Services $29,586 $29,566
1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses $3.933 $3.933
1.2.8.4. Total Program Amount $86,959 $89,679

Tri-Covnly CoTVnu'nlly Aci'on Prog'sm, loc. Amowfmew f)l Conl»8dof irIiSals.
SS-2020-BH$4M-PERMA-2S-AOt P^e 1 ol 3 Date
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New HampBhtre Oopartment of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Permanent Supportive Housing I, Expansion Program

Ml terms end conditions of the Contract not inconsfsleni with (his Amendment Pi remain trt full force and

effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hends as of the dele written below,

Stele of New Hampshire
Department of Keelth end Humen ServiceB

Dale

3lsn(2aSC>

\

r-tcj

Name; Chr
Title;

Wif\.
L". Sc^n-kxrn^tAVo''

Tit-County Community AcfM Program, Inc.

Name; TiolP'Awiri
Title:

Tit-Cour^iy Commvrtiy Action Progrem. Inc. AmenSrrorU 0t

SS-202I>-BHS-04-PERMA-2&-A0I Pee* 2 3

Lvr;
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Nsw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servicea
Continuum of Care, Permanent Supportive Houaino I, Expansion Program

The precedlnQ Amandmenl. having been reviev^d by ihrs office, is approved as to form, substance, end
execution.

OFFICe OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

.Osl<
U

I hereby certl^ (hat the foregoing Amer^ment was approved by the Governor artd Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale Name:

Title:

Tn^oumy CDmnnjnlty AeUon ProgrsA, Inc. Amendmeni #1

S&-20204HS4H-PERMA-2SA01 Pago 3at 3
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' ' "' ̂STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE .

DEPARTMEfn" OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiON OF ECONOMIC S HOUpNGSTASILlTy

ll9PLCASA^r ST(iEeT.C0NC0RD,NH 0»01 ■
MVt7l-9474 l-«0^»-U4S Ell 9474

'•F4i:.M)-'27MU0 TODAccui: I40P-7)S-Z964 wwv:4l>hf.nb.|9v '

May 28,2019

His Excellency. Governor ChristopherT. Sununu .
and the'Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department ot HeaUh'and Human Services. Division of Ewnomk: and Housing,
Stability, (0 enter into sole source agreements Wilh the vendors below to provide Permanent Housing
and CoordihdiedEnlry'P/pgrams and Supportive Sendees to homeless individuals and families through

• the pedo'rarContifiuum of .Care Pr^ram in an amount not to.exceed $1,606,764; effective July 1.20l9.
"upon Governor pnd Execuliye C6uncil approval; through June 30, 2020.'100% Falderal Funds.

VendorlName' project Name . •  Vendor#... • Locaiipn- •
SPY 2020

Arhoupt

Community Action"
Partnershio Strafford County -.

Coordinated-Entry i7720b^'B6o4 Statewide' '$38.52'4.

Corhrriuhily Action Pirogram
Belknajo-Mernmack Counties.,
inc.'

Coordinaled Enlry ' 177203^B003 Statevnds ■ $86,722

FIT/NHNH,lnc.'
Concord Community
Ceasing li Permanent
Housing

157730-BOOi. Concord $99,046

FtT/Nt^NH.jhc, Concord Pennaneni

'Housinp
157730-B001 Concord $68,685

the Lakes' Region MentaT
Health Center; loc.

McGralh St/eel;

Permanent Housing
.1544B0-B001 laconia - $99^35

.Southwe'stern'Communily
Services, Inc.

Permanent Housing
Cheshire County' 177511-R06i

Cheshire &
'  Sijllivan

.Counties

$65,230

Southwestern Community
Services. Inc. •

Coordinated Entry
* s

"l77511-R00r Statewide. .'$86,552

•Soulhwestem Community'
Services; Inc. • "

Shetter Plus Cari^ .. .
Rermaheni riousing l775U-Rp6l

Cheshire &

;■ Sullivan'
Counties

$281,824

The Mental Health Center for
Souiherri.New Hampshire
dba CLNI Center fo^ Ufa '
Management';

Famjty Housing 1 .
Pehriahenl Housing • 174116-R001

.Wesierh
Rockirgham

'County'
$267,435
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Vendor Name Project Name Vendor 9 Location
SFY 2020

Amount

The Mental Health Center for •

Southern New Hampshire
dba CLM Cenier for Life
Management

Permanent Hou'sirg I' 17411&-R001

Vyestern

Rockingham
County

J273.230

Tri-County Community A.clior»
Program, inc.

Cpotdinated Entry 17719S-B009' Statewide . $1^.622

Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.

Penrianenl Supportive
Housing 1, Expansion 177195^B009

GraRon.

Coos, and
.Carroil -

Counties

$88,959

Total; .. »1,608,794

Funds are evdijabte In ihe following sccounl for State Fiscal Year 2020, upon tbe availability and
cbntinued appropriation of funds In the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances betweeri State Fiscal. Years through the Budget Office if-

. needed and justifi^, •

'05-95-42-423016.7927 HEALTH ANO.SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH ANO.HuiwAN SVCS,'
HH$; HUf^AN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

. State Fiscal Year ClassfAccourit Class Title ' . dob'Nurriber AmOunt'

,  -2020 102-500731 Contracts tor Program Services TBp $1:606,764

Total '. $1,606,764:

EXPLANATION ' ' .
't - , • ' . '

These requests are eoleaource because federal regutalioris require the Department to specify
each vendor's name during the anriual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process,
prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Deparirnent of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
reviews t^ applications end subsequently awards funditig based on its criteria. The application process'
and timing of.grat)! terms do not align with slate or federal Hscal years. The s.tart date of a grant is based
ontlie month in which .each grant's Qfiglna) federal agreement was issued. This results in Continuum of
Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests, occurring in various months

..throughout the year.'

• The attached agreements represent twelve (12) of twenty-nine (29) total agreemerils. many.of
which have renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year, with vendors who are located
throughout the state to.ensu're'ongoing, statewide delivery of housing services through New t-iampshire's
Continuum of Care Program.

- The purpose of these requests is for the provision of Permanent Housing and Coordinaled Entry
Programs that shall deliver rental/leasing assistance, service access, supportive services andessocialed
administrative services targeted to serve approximately three-thousand (3000) participants from July 1,
2019 through Jurie 30.2020, .•
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Using the 'Housing First' mpdei and the development of Stabnizalion and Crisis Management
-plans, the Vectors will fadlllate. participant's movernent into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream services to maiimize participafit's ability to live

• more independenlly.

- HUD established the Contmuum of Care concept to support .communities in their efforts to
address the proUems of .housirtg and hotnelessne'ss. in a.coordinated,'comprehensive, and slrategic
fashion! TheConllnuurn-of.Careservesthreemainpurposes; ' .

A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.
. • ' ApoMSs.toehgege broad-based. Mrnmpnlty-wide involvement in addressing homeless'ness <

oneyear-foufKl basis. . •

• An opportunity for.immunities to submit an application lo^ the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and.support services for homeless

'  .individuals and families.

-. The foifovving performance measures/objectives will be used to measure contract compliance "id
vendor perfoimaince:

■« Annual compliance review shaill be performed that indude the collection of data relating to
compliance wilHadministfatiyerulesand contractual agreements.- .

-- '• .Statistical reportSshalftie submitted qna.semi-annuaj basis from aj) fundedyendofs, including'
- vanoiis derh^raphicjnformation and income'and expans'e'rejwrls indudi^ fhatch dollars.

• All vendors funded for rapid re-hdusing. transitional, permanent or coordinated entry houslng.-
or oulreach/supppdjve services will be requiredt'o rhatnlaih timely aijd accurete data entry in'
Ihe N^w Hampshire'Homeiess Management Information System, .unless they are required
law to use an alternate rheans of data collection. The NH Homeless Man'3gemenl.lr>f,ofmat(on
Syslern Wll be.thfe primaiy. reporting tool for outcomes af^d activities of shelter and"housing

• - pr^rams fuhdgd through'this contract,

As.referchce.d in Exhibit C-1 of,each'of these coritracts, the Department reserves the-fight to',
extend each agreement for up-to two (02) additional years, contingent u^n satisfactory delivery of
services, dvaiTabie funding, egreemenl of the parties and approval of the Governor and ^Executive
Council. • • .

, Should Ihe Goyempr a'nd Exccuii.ve Council not authorize these requests,-Permanent Housing,'
a'rid Coordinated .Enlry^rogramsend Supporiive Services for New Hampshire homeless iridtviduals an.d
f8m.ilies.rnaypoVbe'available.ir|their'cqm.munilies. and there may be art increase in demand.for services •
placed upon the region's local welfare aulhoriUes. It,may aisp cause Individuals ar^/br families to become
h'orneless; ' , • •

Source of funds: .1Ci6% Federal funds, from, the .U.S. 'Department of Housing and Lfrban
' Development, Officeb^Corhmuniiy Planning and Development. Catalog of Federal DomesticA^isiance
•fiumber{CFpA)ff}4.26'f. .

.• Areaaefyedi .S^alevrtde

V.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8AC6DCE2-C/^D-4D0e-A534-CC068B673121

His ExceKervcy, Governor Chrr^opherT. Sununu
and the Honorable Council .'

Page 4 of 4

In the.event that the Federal funds become no longer available. General funds vrilj nM be
requested to support ti^se praams.

Respectfully submitted.

Trey A. Meyers.
^mmissioner

■ i

<  *

Tht <iffjeehh and r/unioii Svirira'Afiwien t* Mjein
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (verilen VS/IS)
Subjcci; Cge"lliagnglClft>ftmia/l{fll Supponlvt Homing I. Etatrfiion Pregnm. SS-202Q BHS-64.PERMA.2<

N<n>et: Thii igivcmcnttnd ill ofiit kiuchmcnu (holl b<come public upon lubmluion lo Covecnof ind
Execulirt Council for opprovi). Anjr infomiiion ihii i> priviie, confidcnlia) or proprieliry miul
b« etcirly Idcnilficd to the Mcncy ind tgrccd lo in writing prior lo figning the contncL

AGREEMENT

The Slile orNtw Kimpshire ond Ihc Conmcior hereby muiually igrcc (i foltows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

_L IDENTinCATION. '
1.1 Sine Agency Nome
NH Depvtmeni of Hcolih tnd Huoun Servlcci

1.2 Slate Agency Addreti
l29P!cauniStreei

Concord. NHOJJOIOaS?

I.} Controcior Nirrte
Tri-Couniy Community Action Progrim, Inc

1.4 Contnuor Addre»

30 Enchingc Sireci
Berlin. NH 0)570

1.5 CwirKlor Phone
Number

60)-752-700l

1.6 Accouiti Nuirdter

O5-9S-42-42)0ID-7917.l02>
5007)1

1.7 Cocnplcnon Dale

060{V2020

I.S Price Limiiniion

SBS,959

1.9 Conirteting Officer for Sutc Agency
Ntilun D. While. Oirecior

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271.96)1

I.I I ConiTKiot 1,12 Nime end Tille ofContractor Signiiory

"SeawAC (j£>
1.1) Acknowlcdgcmeni: Suic ori)(.)4c^pVtrt. County.of

On .before the undcrilgrtcd ofTiccr, pcnaaeiiy ippcircd ihc person idcniifled in block 1.12. orHiisfactoriiy
proven IQ be the penon whose neme itsigrKd in block I.11.end ecknowtcdgcd ihei s/hc executed ihij docurKiti miheebpeeily
'indtviicd in'block 1.12.

l.<').l,.Sipiaiurc of,
j.

■  I

or Justice of the Peatt^^,s-nHAMO«iH.
SauolHr«H»wW* . ■

CoflrtMWi upw» "• r"My<

•l_,l).7 -Neme iWTiiTeofNoleryor Justice of the Peace

IAt5f.A
I!) Signceiu

1.16 Approvolby the

By:

.C

^..<^aie:'

IJi NeinA.tnd Tilleof Stale Agency Sigiuiory

Dcparnncni of Admimsimiion, Division of Personnel fi/epplie/ible) .

Oirecior. On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney Certcril (Form. Substance and Execution) (ifnpplleohltj

By: p,K*>/ On: (jllC)
I.U Approvalby the Covcrnorand Eaecuiivc Council p/appUcobh)

By: Onf

'Page I of4
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1. EMPLOVMENTOFCOffTRACTOIUSERVICESTO
BE PCRFORMCO. The Stiic ofNew Himpshire, icttng
through the «g«ncy ideniiried in block I.I ("State"), cngagei
contneioritlenilficil in block (.3 ("Contncior") to perform,
tad (tie Contrtcior aha!) perform, (he work or tale of good*, or
both, idcntiried «nd more panicularly dcacribed in ihc antchcd
EXHIBIT A which ii ineoiporsicd herein by reference
fServket").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION Of SERVICES.
3.1 Nolwiihtlonding any provition of ihii Apecmeni to the
ecnirtry, and luVJcci to the approval of the CovertKr and
ExKuiive Council of(he Stale ofNew Hampshire, if
applicable, Ihij Agrcemcni, artd all obligations of Ihe parties
hcreunder, fhsll become crTective on the date the Governor

and Eaccuiive Council ippro\-e this Agreement at indicated itv
block I. II, unless no Such approval is required, in which cose
the Agreemerti shall become erTeciivt on the date the
Agreement Is signed by Ihe State Agency U shown in block
I.UC'efTeciivc Due") .
3.2 If the Contractor comnrencei the Services prior to the
EfTcciive Date, oil Services performed by the Conincior prior
10 the Cffeciive Date shall be performei] ot the sole risk of the
Conirsclor, and in the evcM ihai ihts Agreement docs not
become efTecilve, the Siaic shall have no liability lo the
ContrKior, including without limiiailoni aity obligation to pay
the Conirtcior far any costs incurred or Services performed.
Connector must complete all Servicei by the Completion Dote
^ecified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision ofthis Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of ihe Slate hcreunder, including,
wilhoul limiiaiion. Ihe conllnuaiKC ofpayments hereunder. arc
contingent upon Ihe tvailabiliiy and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the Slate be liable for any
payments hereundci in esccssofsuch available appiopritied
funds. In the event of a reduction or icrmlnation of

appropriated funds, the Slate shall have the right to withhold
paymcni until such funds became available, ifevcr, artd shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immcdisicly upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Stote
sholl not be required to transfer funds from any other aceounl
to Ihc Account idenriried in block 1.6 in the event Rinds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LirdlTATiON/

PAYfrfENT,

i. I The contract price, mcihod ofpaymerti, and terms of
poymem ore Identified and more paniculorly described in
EXHIBIT B which is iiKorporaied herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Stare of the contract price shall be the
only artd the complete reimbuneriKnt to the Contractor for oil
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in Ihc
performance hereof, and shall be Ihe ortly and the complete

compciuiiioniotheCorttTKiorror Ihe Services. The Slate
shall have no liabiliry lo the Comncior other than the contract
price.

5.3 The Suie rcaerves the right to offset froin any tmounis
otherwise payable to the Conmecor under Uits Agreement
those liquidated amounis required or penrtined by N.H. RSA
g0;7 through RSA 80:7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Norwiihstanding any provision in this Agrecmeni to the
contrary, and itorwiihsrandtng unexpected circutrutaneet. in
fto event ahati the total of ail payntenii authorized, or oeiutlly
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set fonh in blo^
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Servicn, (he
Coitlraclor shall comply with all slaluiei. lows, regulalioni.
and orders of federal, date, county or municipal atiihorilies
which impose any obligation or dury upon the Coninicior,
including, but noi limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This ntay include the requirement to uiilrze luiilitry
aids lod lervkes to ensure ihii perions with convnunicaTion
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, con
communicate with, receive information from, end convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Coninscior
shall comply with all tpplkoble copyrighi laws.
6.2 During the lermofiltis Agreement, the Coniracioi shall '
not diKriminaie against employees or ipplicanis for
employment because of nee, color, religion, ciced. age, sex,
handicap, lexual orieaiiiion, or nationil origin and will like
anirmtiivc action to prevent such diKriminaiion.
6.3 Ifihis Agreement Is Rinded in on/part by monies oflhe
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment 0(^minity"). as supplemented by the
regulations of Ihe United Slates Department of Labor (41
C.F R. Pan 60), and with arty rules, regulations end guidelines
at ihe Stale ofNew Hampshire or the United States issue lo
implement these tcgulattons. The Conrrteior Rusher agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of-ihe
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the ptirpose of
aaeenaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,-
and Ihe covenants, terms and eondilknt of this Agreemeni.

7.PERS0NNEL-

7.1 The Connctor shall ai its own expense provide oil
personnel ncecssiry to perform the Servicei. The Contricioi

wnrrnnis that all personnel engaged in ihe Services ahall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
Ikensed and oihervrisa authorised to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, end for a period of six (6) inonihs aRer the
Completion Date In block 1.7, the Conrncior shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subconiraeior or other person. linn or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perfomi the Services to hire, any persoit who is a State
employee orofTieial, who is maieriilly involved in ihe
procurement, edminislralion or performance ofihls

Pege 2 of 4
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Apeenitni. Thii provition iholl nrvivi ferminition of ihit
Agreemni.
7.) TV CentrKtini OfTiccr (pceifictf in block I or hii or
her cucccuor, thoil be ihe Siate'i reprewnuiive. In the cvcni
of any diipuic concerning ibc iniciptciitioo of ihii Atnemem,
the Ccntnciing OfTtccr't decition ihtll be finil Tor (he Suic.

S. EVEMT OF DEFAULTmBMCDieS.

t.l Any one or more of the foHowingocuor omiuions of(he
Conmeior ihali eeuliiulc en e«eni of defsuli hertundcr

("EveniofOeftuh"}:
B.l.l fiihire (0 perform ihe Strvlcci laiitfeciorlly or on
eehcdule:

1.1.2 foihire loiubniii any report required hcreunder; and/or
1.1.) failure 10 perform any oihercovcoani, lermorcondiiion
ofihii Agteemeni.
1.2 Upon the oeeurrcnce of arty Event of Oefauli. the Siaic
may (ake any one, or nwrc. or all, of (he fotlowiog aci'Oitt:
1.2.1 give (he Contiacior a wrinen notice ipceifying ihe Event
of Default and requiring ii lo be remedied within, in the
abience of a greater or leaser apecification ortime, thirty ()0]
days horn (he date of the noitcc; and if (he Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days inei giving the Conireeior notice of lerminiiiort:
8.2.2 give the Conmeior a written notice apeei^rig the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Apecmcnt and ordering that the portion of the contract price
wMch would otherwise accrue to the Conrraeiot during the
period from the date of such noitee imiil lueh ilntt as Ihe Stale
detcnnines (hat the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

ahall never be poid to the ConirtciO':
1.2.) act oITagainst any other obligations the State may owe to
the,Contractor any doniages the State wfrcra by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
1.2.0 treat the Agrtemeni as breached and pursue anyofiu
remedlea at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCeSS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

FRESERVATION.

9.1 At used in this Agreenxni, the word "data" shall ntcan all
infomatien and things developed or obtained during the
perfbrmance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, (hij
Agreement, including, but not limited to, ell siudiet, lepona,

'flics, formulae, surveys, maps, chans. sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic rcprcscntfltiona, computer progranu, computer
printout I. notci, leitcrs, mentorsndi, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfiniihed.

9.2 All date and any piopeny which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall bC Ihe properly of the Stale, and
Shall be returned to Ihe State upon demand or upon
Icrtninalion of this Agreement for any reason.
9.) CoAfidcntiality of data shall be governed by N.K. RSA
chapter 91-A or other cxitiing lew. DIseloiuie ofdata
requires prior wriiicn approval ofthe Slate.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early lenttinationof
this Agreement for any reason ocher than the compktlort ofthe
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Conmciutg
Ofhecr, net later diao Eflcen (I i) days after the dale of
termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Scivicca perfonncd, and the contract price earned, to
and including the dale of lerminiiion. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copiei of the Terminaiioit
Repon itiall be idcmieal to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

II . CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performsnee of this Agreement iheContractor'is in all
rcspccia an independent contractor, and >1 neither an agent nor
an employee ofthe State. Neither the ContrKtor nor anyofiu
ofTicen, cmploytcs, agents or mcmbcn shall have auOiorily to
bind the Stale or receive any benefits, urarkera' coittpensailon
or other emoluments provided by the Suie to its ein^oyeca.

12. ASSICNMEKT/DELECATION«UBCONTRAtrrS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or oihcrwiie tranifer any

inicrcsi it) this Agrcemeni without the prior written notice and
corueni ofthe State. None of the Services ahall be

lubconiracied by the Conmeior without the prior written
notice and consent of the Slate.

I). INDEMNIFICATION. The CoorrKior shall defend,
indemnify and hold ha/mlets the Siiic, iu oRieera and
employtei. from and against any and alt loiset lufTeied by the
State, iu ofTiccra and employees, and any and ail claims,
liabilities or penalties atsened against the State, iu ofTKcrs
and employees, by or on behilfoftny penon.on account of.
based or resulting from, arising oul of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) 'he acts or omissions ofthe
ConirKtor. Notwtihiianding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained sholl be deemed locoMtiiuic a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immuniiy .is hereby
reserved to the Suie. Thii covenant in paragraph I) shall
Survive the termlnaiios of this Agreemem.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at iu sole espcnse, obtain and

mainiiin in force, and ahall require inyiubcontTtcioror
assignee to obtain and nuintain In force, the fsllowing
insurance:
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability iniurance against all
claims of bodily injury, deaihor property ilamage, in oiROunis
of net less than SI,OOO.OOOper occurrence and S2.(M>0.(XX)
aggregate: and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject (bsubparagraph 9.2 herein, in on amount not
less than 80M of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policicr described In lubpatagreph 14,1 herein shell
be on policy forms and cndenemcnu approved for use irt the
Slate of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
(niuience. and issued by insurers licensed in the Stale of New
Harnpthire.

Page 3 of 4
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14.} The Conrrteio'shill furnish lo Ihc Contriciin^ Officer
i^cniiried in block 1.9, orhii orbertuccetMr, i e<rtiric*ic(i)
of insunnce for ill iitmrancc required under ihii Agreemeni.
Contnclor shill olso furaith lo the Contncling Officer
ideniified in block 1.9, or hie or her iucceesor, ctnificiie(t) of

insuiince for til renewiKi) of IrtMrtnce required under this
Agreement m later than thirty (30) diyi prior to the eepiriiion
dale of each of the iniunnce policict. The ceitifie«ie([)or
insurunee tnd any renewtit ihcreofebill be tiitehed and tre
incorpsnietl herein by reference. Etch eenifteiie(s) of
inturtnce ihall conltin a clause requiring the iniurei lo
provide the ConiriKiing Officer ideniified in block 1.9, or hit
or her euccessor, no less than ihitry (30) days prior uritien
notice of eaneellaiion or modificalion of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agrecmeni, the Contrteior agrees,
cctiirteaatid wamnii ihii the Contrteior is In corripilinee with
Of esempi from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Wvrktn' Compematien
15.2 Toiheexleni the Contrteior is subject ID the
requiremenii of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Coniracior shall
maintain, and require any subconiracior or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with aciiviiics urhieh the person proposes to
undemke pursuant to this Agreement. Contrteior shall
furnish the Contracting OfTicer ideniified in'bloek 1.9, or his
or hersuecdssor, proof of Worken' Compentaiion in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable rtnewilfs) thereof, which shall be inichcd and are
incorporated herein by reference. The Sialc shall not be
reiporuible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
pie'miunu or for any other claim or benefii for Coniracior, or
any lubconiiacior or employee ofContracior, which might
arise uitder applicable Slate of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in conneelion wiih the performance of the
Services under this Agrtenscni.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afrer any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Eveitl of Oeftull. No eiprejs
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Stale lo enforce each and >11 of the
provisions hereofupon any further or olher Eveni of Default
onihepirtoftheConimeior, -

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to (he other party
shall be deemed to hive been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by ecrtified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses
given in blocks l.2and 1.4. herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only after appTOvel ofsuch
amendnKni. waiver or diKharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hompshire unless no

such approval Is required under the eireutrulonces pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in aceoidanee with the
laws of(he State ofNew Himpshlrc, and is binding upon and
inures to the beiKfii of the parties and their respeeiive
successors and assigns. The wording iised in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by (he parties <0 express their mutual
intent, and rto rule of consrrueiiofl shall be applied sgtinst or
in favor of any parly.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
beitefii any third ptnies and ihii Agreemeni sbill not be
eonsirvcd to confer any such benefii.

21. HEADINGS. The headings Ihroughoui the Agreement
are for refercnee pulses only, and the words contained
■herein shall in no way be hcltj lo explain, modify, amplify or
lid in (he inierprcttiion, constiuction or meaning of the
provisions of (his Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in Ihesnached EXHIBIT C are incoiporaled herein by
reference.

23. SCVERABILITV. In the event any Of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court ofcompeieni jurisdkiion to
be contrary to any state or federal law. the lemaining
pTovisians of this Agreement will remain in full force and
efTcci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrermenl, which may
be executed in a number of cpunierparts. each of which shall
be dcerrted aaoriginal,eonstinjict the entire AgTetmeni and
undemanding between the parlies, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings ictating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Progrem

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Supportive Housing Program

1. Provisions Aoptlcabla to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed deschption of the language assislance services Ihey wiil-
provlded.to persons with limited English prbrciency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services wtthirt ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NHDHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS)
12d Pleasant Street

• Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Conlracior agrees that, to the extent fuiure legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on (he services described herein, the
Stale, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.-

1.3. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligaiions of the State are
contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Conltnuum of Care (CoC) Grenl. The State,
as the Collaborative Applicant lor the Balance of State CoC, and/or, the recipleril of the CoC
funding, has applied for the CoC Grant and Mill continue to perform due diligence in the
appfication process. However, the Stale makes no represenialion lhat it will revive the funds, in

.  no event shall the Slate be liable for costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the
Corrtractor prior to the Slate's receipt of federal funds applied for in (he CoC Grant.

1.4. For (he purposes, of this agreement, the Department has idenlirted the Contractor as a
subreclplenl. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. NolwithslBndif>g the confideniielity procedures established under 24 CFR Part 576.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), (he HUD Office of the Inspector
General, end the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records
of the Contractor lhat are pertinent to the CoC grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to (he required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.6. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal arnl'state finandat and conndenllallty laws,
and agrees to comply with (he program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, es detailed in the 2017 Notice ot Funding Available'(NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according lo HUD regulations outlined In Public Law 102-
SSO and 24 CFR Part 578; CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD poiicies/directlves.

1.8. AD programs shaO be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, iriduding
specific information required for data anlr>, accuracy of data er>tered. and lime required for data
entry, f^efer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy,
requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shaD cooperate (ujly with and answer all questions, related lo this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic rewew of
performance or an mspection ol records.

aLTCCIVPWISi»»>ul0ft EiMbUA V^. _
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New Hempshire Department pf Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhlbll A

1.10. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which Is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless indivfduels and families to permanent housing end
maximum self-sufficiency.

"2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by. the
CoC Program. Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons wilh AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance vnlh CoC interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shell provide a permanent supportive housing program through the expar)slon
project that delivers six (6) scattered sitd apartments for individuals experiencing chrortic
rvomelessness. end wtiich includes, but Is not limited to:

2.2.1. UtiBzation of the 'Housmg First' model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not Imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project parliclpalion (or
the most severe reasons, once avaitabie options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing.

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis managemeni plan with the particlpanj, at
intalce and,. at a minimum, annually. An ongolrig Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Service's is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds ere us'ed in accordance wilh 24 CFR 578 end must eslsbtish and rnaintain

-. Sufficient records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance,
including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation
related to establishing ar^d operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. Tne Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
horr>eiass slatus in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homeiessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain recwds that

establish 'at risk of homeiessness* status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homeiessness prevention assistance, as Identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

■  2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of ImmlnenI Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain

dbcwmeniation of each program participant who moved lo a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating vtolence, sexual asseult, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.5.1(c)(3). The Contractor shat) retain documentation that includes, but is
not limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence ol domestic violence, dating vtolence. sexual assault, or.
stalking, only if the original violence is not already documented in the program
pari'cipant's case fiie. This may be written observelion of the housing or service
provider; a loner or olher documentation from a victim service prowder, social worker,
legal essisiance provider, pastoral courtselor. mental health provider, or other'
professional from whom the victim has sought assistance; medical or dental records;
court records or law enforcement records; or wrinen certification by the program
participant lo whom the violence occurred or by the head of household.
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent ihreai of further domestic violence, dating
violence, or sexual assault or stalking, which would Include threats from a third-party,
such as a friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may bo
wriltert observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation
from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has
sought assistance; cuneni restraining order; recent courl order or other court records;
law enforcement report or records; communication records from the pe^elralor of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, irtcluding
emails, voicemails. text messeges, and social media posts; or a written certification
by the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual tncome. For each program particlpent who receives housing
assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant the
Contractor must keep the following documentation of annual income;

2.3.1.4.1. Income evakiation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and
I

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g.. most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public bcnefrts statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the '
program participant and income received before ihe dale of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To Ihe extent that source documents ere unobtainable, a written siatemeni by a
relevant third party (e.g.. employer, govemmerti benefits edministrator) or the writteit
cahification by the Contractor's Intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To Ihe extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certificaUon by the program participant of the amount of Income thai Ihe
program participant is reasonebly expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Prooram Peitieipant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness Status or at-risk-of-

homelessnass status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
thet the Contractor, has conducted an annual assessment of services tor those

program participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted
the sen/Ice package accordingly, and including case management services es
provided in 24 CFR 578.37(a)(1J(ii)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termtnalfon of assistance regulremeni In'24
CFR 575.91.

.  2.3.1.5. HousifiQ Slandards. The Contrector musi retain documentation of connpllBnce with the
housing slandards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), Including Inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Coniraclor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program parlicipanis was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contrector shall mainiein records that document compliance wllh:

2.4,1. The OfQanizational conflict-of-interest reguiremenls in 24 CFR 578.95(c).
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2.4.2: The Continuum of Care Board confiict-oHntarest requlremenis In 24 CFR 578.9S(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicls reQuirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

- 2.S. The Conlractof shad develop, implemani and retain a copy of the personal conflici-of-interost
policy thai complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any
exceptions to the personal conflicl-oMnteresi prohibitions.

2.5. The Corrector shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.7S(g).

2.6.2. The Faith^aased Activities reoulremettls in accordanca with 24 CFR S7ft fl7rht

2.8.3. Affifmallvelv Furtherlna Fair Housing by meinialning copies of an mencelrng, outree^. and
other materials used lo inform eligible persons of the program In accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c), '

2-6-4. Other Federal Reouirements in 24 CFR 578.99. es'applicabie.

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUO.

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
corhpllanca with the Procurement Reouiremenls in 24 CFR 65.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Conrtdenlialitv, In addilion to meeting the specific confidentiality and security requirements for .
HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shad develop and implerhent written procedures to
ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be Kept secure and confidential as
required by this Agreement and state and federal laws and regulations;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Cere funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for P>e
operation of tl>e project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public,
except as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subredpienl and
consistent v4lh State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality;

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
mtcrorilming. photocopying, or other simitar methods, pertaining lo Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following (he Contrect Completion Date end recalpt of Tinai payment by
the Conlractolr unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for e period in excess of
the five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Prooram Reporilng Reaulrements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report fAPRt: Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted lo BHS Ihel summarizes the eggregete results of the Project
Activities, showing In particular how the Contractor Is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD fo' the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability {NOFA)..Tho APR shall be In the form required or specified by the Stale, and
submitted to^the address listed in section t 1. Exhibit A; and .
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3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the Stale In compljance with NH HMiS policy.

4. Contract AdmlnlBtratior> ^

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend ell meetlrtgs or trainings requested
by 6HS, induding training in data security ertd confidentiality, according to stale and federal taws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five
($) working days In advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall Inform BHS of any staffing changes wilhin thirty (30) days of the change.

5. ParfarmancB Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to ell lenhs and conditions as set forth In lha HUD New Project
Application, federal fiscal year 2018, 0SP-424, dated September 07. 2018; and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations induding, but not limited to, those outlined In 24 CFR Part 576: Continuum of
Care Program and PubDc Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or dssignee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Dellverablas

6.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A,
In accordance with the CoC Program Interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 end as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a permanent supportive housing program as outlined In Section 2.2.
Exhibit A and as outlined In other written HUD policies arid directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall indude, but are not limited to;

6.2.1.1. Participants exit homeiessness faster, and once housed, remain stably housed.

6.2.1.2. Participants experience increased connections to:

6.2.1.2.1. Rnandal resources' such as SSI/SSDI, SNAP and cash assistance through
applications done witti the assistance of the case manager;

6.2.1.2.2. Irtcreased employment through availability of job Irairting/resume writing courses; end

6.2.1.2.3. A decrease in the use of emergency services such as hospitals, jails and shelters.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed In Saclion 3., Program
Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A.
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METHOD AND CQNDITJQNS PftECEDENTTO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Supportive Housing Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the denerai Provisions of this Agreemeni and in consideration of the satisfeciory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope
of Servlcos, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount ncM to exceed Porn P-37, Block
1.6. Price Limitation and for (he lime period specitied below.

1.2. "H^lS Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Furxi and/or by federal funds rhada
available urxier (he Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFOA). as iMIows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDAfl: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: ' NHO02OLtTO0l611

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Cere. Permanent Supportive Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. notioexceod $88,959

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

1.2.8.1. Rental Assistance: $55,440

1.2.6.2. ^Supportive Services: $29,566

1.2.8.3. Admlnistrativo Expenses: $3.933

1.2.8.4. Total program amount: $88,959

1.3. The Contractor agrees Co provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Servtco In compliance with
' funding reQuirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Rcoorta

2.1. As part of ihe performance of the Project Activities, the Coniractor covenanis and agrees to
Submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared In accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the eudiled 6nanclel report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau ol Housing Su^orts
129 Pleasant Street

-Concord. NH 03301

2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds era to be used only In accordance with procedures,
requlremertts, end prir\ciple5 specined In 2 CFR part 200.
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2.3. If the Conlractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (t) copy of an audited financial report to the OeparUner^t utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller Gerwrel of the United States in 'Stsrtdards (or Audit of Governmental
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions," within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion dale.

3. Prolect Costs: Pavmont Schedule: Review by (tie State

3.1. Project Costs: As used In this Agreement, the term 'Project Costs' shall mean all expenses
directly or Indirectly incurred by the Contrsctor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
deiermirted by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment In accordance with Public Law

-  102-SS0asweII as allowable cost standards sol forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised fromtirhe to
time end with the rules, regulations, end guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR pad 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pey for eligible costs listed In 24 CFR 576.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; arxf. in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs ere eligible (or all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
end pt^ides dascribed in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match riaquirements are to be documented with eeclf payment request.

3.3.3. The Conlractor musi match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-Klrtd contributions from other sources. Cash rnatch
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart 0 of 24 CfR 576..
The Contractor shell:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source end use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 576.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies thai specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records Include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that ere
supported by the same methods used to support the allocatjon of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Pavmenl of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The Stele agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fuirillmenl of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
suff)clent funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed lor those costs des'ignaied as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Etigrbiiity. Exhibit S. The Contractor must
have written approval from the Slate prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be In accordance wiih the approved tine item not to exceed an
amount as specified in this Exhibit, end defined by HUO under'the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 end other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Cosis shall be made through the uiiuzaiion of funds as provided
I  through the U.S. Oepertmeni of Housing and Urban Oeveloprnenl Tiilo XIV Housing

programs under (he Homeless Emergency Assistance end Rapid Trensillon to Housing

Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550), In an amount
and lime period not to exceed as speciTied in Section 1.2. Exhibit B.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, includirtg the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each rnonth,
for the previous mortlh, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of ead^ requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the Slate, which shall be
completed end signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu Of hard copies submitled to the address listed in Sedion 2.1.2. Exhibit B..
all invoices may be assigned an eleclronic signalure end emailed to:'

housinQSUDoort3lnvolce5@dhhs.nh.QOv

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities reialed to Depertment
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial informaUon if requesled by the Stale to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the Slate Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance,of the Services', end upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the Stale rnay
review ell Project Costs incurred by the Conlrecior' and all payments made to dale.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that ere not determined
to be ellowable or are determined to be In excess of actual expendilures. and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expendilures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. It the Stale disallows costs tor which payment has rtot yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the conlrary herein. Ihe Contractor agrees that funding under
•  this Agreement may be withheld, In whole or in part, in the evoni of non-compliance, with
' any Federal or Slate law. rule or rssulalion applicable to ihe ssrNocos provided, or if the

said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and B. or
NH-HMIS date entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with (fie terms and conditions of this Agreemertt.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.V Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limlied to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related Hems, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, end io adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made

- by ̂ tlen agreement of both parlies arvj may tw made through the Budget OfflM without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Counal if needed and justined.

B. Exoenee Ellalbllltv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds.-the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care program furtds spedHed In this Exhibit 8 from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for corttract services.

5.2. Ooeratino Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligibla operating expenses inctude:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance end repair ol housing;

5.2.1.2. Properly lexes end insurance (including properly and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of die units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Uliiiiias, including electricity, gas end water; and

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

S.2.2.V Rental assistance artd operaiing costs in the seme project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilib'es; arKf

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the cosls ol maintaining and repairing
the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. SuDborlive Services

5.3.1. Eiigible supportive services costs must comply with all HUO reguiations in 24 CFR 578.53.
and ere available to individuals aciivaiy participating in the permanent housir>g progrem.

5.3.2. Eiigible cosls shall Include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Sendee Needs. The cosls of essessmeni required by
578.53(a) (2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving cosls. Reasonable one-lime moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The cosls of assessing, errenging. coordinaling. and
monilotlng the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs ol the program
p8riicipant(s} are eligible oosis;
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5.3.2.4. Child Caro. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness. intiudirrg
providing meats and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated devetoprrienlal
aciivilies are eligible:

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
stilus ere eligible;

5.3.2.5. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of esiebllshing and operating
employment 'assistance and job training programs are eligibla, including
classroom, ontine ar>d/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing orhployment. eceuiring learning etdtls. and/or

V  Increasing earning potential. lT^e cost ol providing reasonable stipends to
program padlcipanls in employment assistance erid job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program parlicfpants is eligible;

5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs ol assisting eligible program
perticipanls lo locate, obtain, and retain sullsbte housing are ellgibis:

5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys ar>d by
person(s) under the supervisicm of licensed attorT>eys. for advice end
represenielion in metiers that interfere with homeless Individual or famity's ability
to obtain end retain.hdusing:

5.3.2.10. Llle Skills training. The costs ol leaching critical We management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
Illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills (raining ere the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for lood and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportalioa and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions ihat are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis Intervenlions; counseling; irKlividual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescriplien of psychotropic medicaiions or explanations about the
usa and management of medications; and combinations of iharapautlc
approaches lo address muliipie problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient heetlh services. Eligible costs are the direct oulpalient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medk^l professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities lo engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support artd Intervention, as well as identifying polentisi
program particlpanls. are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Subslence abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant Intake and
assessment, outpatierit treatmonl, group and Individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatleni deloxificalion and other inpabenf drug or alcohol
treatment are Ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are desalbed in 24CFR 576(e)(1S);
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-lime, paid to utility companies:

5.3.2.17. Oirecl prp\n»on of seivices. if the seivice described in 24CFR578.$3(e){l}> (16)
of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or subrodpiont, eligible

. costs for those services are dascn'bed in 24 CFR 576(e) (17);

5.3.2.10. Ineligible costs. Ariy cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
.an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Conlirtuum of Cars program
funds. Staff trainlr\g and costs of obtaining protessione! licensure or certifications
needed to provide supportive services ere not eligible costs: and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to Ihe same extent for program
partidpanis who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons fiving with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or

"■ stalking, '
I- Renlal Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds maybe used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.
5.4.2. Rental assisiance cannot be provided to a program partidpani who is already receiving

rental asslstartce. or who is Irving in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal. State, orlocal sources.

1

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
eslabBshed by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 57fi.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 576.51. artd
may t)e:

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rertt:

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months: or
f

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord. In addition
to the security deposit and payment o! first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as-determined
by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for comparebte unassisted units,
taking into eccount the localion, size, type, qualify, amenilles. facililies. end management
and malnienarvce of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use granl funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to houslrtg due to the action of a program panicipanl. For Laasmo funds
only; Properly damages may be paid orvfy from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State end local housing codas, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Besed Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of Ihe iurisdiclion In which Ihe housing Is locdied rogarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.

jl
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S.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of (he following types oi renlal assisOr\ce: Tenant-based,
Project-based, or Sponsor-based renlal assistance as described in 24 CPR S78.S1.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance Is rental assistarice In which program participants
choose housing of en appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination ol supportive services, recipients and subredpients may
reguire program participants to live in a spedFre area for their entire period of
psrticipalion, or in a spedfic structure for the frst year and In d specific area for
the remainder of their period of partidpalion. Short and medium term renlal
assislence provided under the Rapid Re-Housing prtsgram component must be
tenant based renlal assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided througtt contracts between the
redpient end sponsor organization. A sponsor may be e privale, nonprofit

' organization, or a community .menial health egency established es a public
nonprofit organization Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the s^rtsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based renlal assistance is provided through a contract with the owner ol
an existing structure, wttera (he own'er agrees to lease the subsidized units (o
program parlidpants. Program partidpants wll not retain rental assistance If they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or lenant-based rental assistance, program
partidpants must enter into a lease agreement (or a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party..

5,5. Administrative Costs: .

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs indude:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not indude staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities etrgible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57. because
those costs are eligible as part ol those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordinelion. monitoring and evakialiott. These costs include, but
ere not limited to. necessary expenditures lor the following;

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contrpdor's. or other staff
'  ertgage in program admirt'rslralion.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the coniraclor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs ellocable to the program of.each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, invdye

f  program edministrslion assignments, or the pro rate share of the salary.
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
edmlnislrallon assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods lor each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
indude the following;

TCCAPrSHIE(»inaton EtfAlO CarVKUrMtU)
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amandmenis to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing syslems for assuring compliance vrilh program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing inteiagency agreements and agreemenis with
subrectpienis and contractors lo carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program acUvilias for progress and compSance with
program requiremsnis;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related lo the program fw
submission to HUD;

5.5-1.2.1.1.6. Coordinaling ihe solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparingrepoilsendotherdocumertisdlrectlyrelaipdtotheprogrem
'  sutmisslon to HUO; \

5.5.12.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supenrlsing persons whose primary responsibilities v^th
regard lo the program include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. above, Exhibll B.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11 Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, irrcluding such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.11.12. Other costs for goods erxl services required for adrr^stration of the
program, including such goods and services es rerttal or purchase of
equipment, msurance. utilities, office supplies, end rental end
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5,5.12.1.113. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
lra[nir>g on Continuum of Care requirements and enendir>9 HUO-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings; and

5.5.1.2.1.114. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsIbllillBS under 24 CFR 576.31

"5.6. Leasing;

When the Cgntrector is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons tor up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, thair
parent organization, any other related orgenizalionls), or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the slrutiure. unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

TCCAeejHievwMn CiMMI
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S.6.1. Requirements:

5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used lo pay rent for all or part of a structure
Of structures, the rent paid musi be reasonable in relattor> to rents being charged
In the area (or comparable space. In addition, ttie rent peid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing Individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
twusing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged for
comperable units, taklr^g into eccount the location, siae. type, quality, emenities,
facilities, and management serMces. In eddUlon, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, end the rent paid may not exceed
HUO-determined fair msiket rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, end water are included in the rant, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except (or supportive service facilities. II the structure
is t>eing used as a supportive service facility, then these utifily costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits. In an amount rtot lo exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rant,may be prowded to the landlord in
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

S,6^1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specrfiad In 24 CFR 576.77(a}.

5.6.1.6. Calculation ol occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges artd renl'from
program participants must be calcuiated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
576.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFft 578.49(6)(0)

5.6.1.9. Rent p^d may only reflect ecluel costs end must be reasortable In comparison to
rents charged In the area tor similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on fife by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid vrlth grant funds may not exceed HUD-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay Individual landlords directly; funds may not be given
dirocliy lo padidpants lo pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Properly damages may only be peid from money pa'id to the landlord (or security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contrector cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with ati Slate end local housing codes, ticensing
requiremenls. the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction In wtiich the housing is located regarding the '
condition ofthe structure andoperation of the housing or services. ^
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'5.7. The Cor^traclor may charge program parlicipanls rent and utilities (heal, hot water); however,
the amount charged mey not exceed the maximum amounts spacified in HUD regulations (24

>  CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone. Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this Contract, or eouniad as maich,
completa weekly or t>i-weekly llmesheels.

«■ Contracter Flnanclel Manaoement Svatom

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Conlractor shall establish rises! control and fund accounting proc^ures
wliich assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nontedoral expenditures. This responsibiliiy applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
2O0 or such aquivaleiu system as the State may require.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the ellglblllty
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: in addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a date file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
infotmaiion necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that ail applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to ftB out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Stale in order to influence the perfonnance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate (his ConlracI and any sub-contrecl or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any ofnciais, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding. It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for eny services provided to any individual prior to Ihe Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Ihe Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase sen/ices
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine dial the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs; . ̂
Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor bwiiiab ^*<0
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event faiiure to make
sudi repayment shaii constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eiigibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: in addition to the eiigibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect ail such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include al] records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to retain
payment for such senrices.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of senrices.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 'Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review; During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to ail reports and records maintained pursuanlto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
Of federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception,

10. Conndentlallty of Records: All Information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor lnHials\.—fr-"
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Notwiihstarrding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim rinancial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11,Z. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon Uie purchase by the Department of the
maximum number ofunils provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if; upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such

'expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: Ail documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the senrices of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership; All materials (witten, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directaries, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithoul
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the sen/ices at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at at) times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaiand
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
lav/s and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C - Spedal Provisloris Contractor Inltiab. ____
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more employees, it wili maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfsfcert.pdf,

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, naUonalorigin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency {LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whietlebiower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Sim^ified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currenUy, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.e. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908,

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing. In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care sendees or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s)- Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the sutwontractor's ability to perform the delegated '
funclion(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.*

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, frie Contractor shall do the following;

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perfonn the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed If the subcontractor's
perfoimance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

•• Exhibit C - Special Pfovisions Coniraclor Initials
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS; Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTIVIENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forUi the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit 8 of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING CTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Spbdal Provisions Contractor initisb
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, Including without limitation, the continuance of payments, In whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected'by
any state or federal legislative or executive action thai reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Sen/ices provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, tennination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modirtcation. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the Stete Is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the Stale related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are Iransitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of sen/ices in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions/Exceptions to Standsnl Contract Language Contractor Initids.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D: 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS '

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1983 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmenl. Contractors using this form should
send It to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or Mill continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distnbutlon,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occuming in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requiremenl that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

emptoyment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; end
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in wrriting. within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or othenwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including posilion title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification reqardinfj Drua Free Vendor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number($) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

terminalion, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7, Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2.1.3.1.4.1,5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the ̂ ace provided below the site{s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Vendor Namearv-Cow.^

Date
itete—

Title:

L/n

Exhibit D-Certincetlonrogardlng Drug Free Vender Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTiFiCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XiX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memtjer of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. if any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Its Instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file Hie required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than S10.000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name;'T?\-to»MH CbvvvwmM\V^ , i wc.

Date Name:
Title:

ExNbi) E - Certification Resarding Lobbying Vendor Niiels,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor idenUfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below wii not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, Ihe prospecbve participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumtsh a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Govemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction,' "debarred," "suspended." "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will include the
clause tided "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibiiity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modirication, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that It is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
dedde the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishmenl of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Centflcallon Regarding Dabarment. Suspension Vendor Inlilats
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the F^erai government, DHHS may terminate Oils transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared Ineligible, or

volunlariiy excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, Stale or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certirication, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debannent, declared Ineligible, or

volunlariiy excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. whiere the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor NamerTf^-Ccvrt^x^CfivwwvoA'-b^

Dale ' Name:

Title: ceo
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTiFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WrTH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONPISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLQWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections VII and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply., and v/lll require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this staUjte from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or nabonal origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employmeni and the delivery of
services or beneTits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination:

■ 28 C.F.R. pt- 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistlebiowor protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whislteblower Protections; which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certiflcalion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspen^on of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or Slate court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman,

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: AOtvbA ^'

Date Name:3>^vvt,
Title: Qj^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - En>,rtronmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used roubnely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of tfie General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:T<i- COwAV^t <VA\cvs Pro I wC.

Date^ Name:
Title:
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate' shali mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set"shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164,501.

e- 'Data Aaareaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitieXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto,

I. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shali have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^

3/2014 Exhibll I Vencki' Initials
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m.- "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusabie,
unreadabie, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R, Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information,

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to ail
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is petmitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach,

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis lhat it is required by law. without firet notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit! Vendor Initials
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. ' If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObHaations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity,

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall cornply with alt sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require ail of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 ExhlBlll Vendor Inillals V'yt.—
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnifcation from such
business associates who shafi be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37).of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disciosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shaii make avaiiable during normal business hours at its offices aii
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,

Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record

Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to futfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by a'n
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164,528,

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity, Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fonA/arding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenvise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasibie, for so long as Business v
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Associate maintains such PHI. if Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
-Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed,

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reaulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Segregation, If any term or condition of Ihis Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is heid invaiid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) 1, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37}. shail survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

State

&gna

Ch
jgna

Name of Authorized Representative

Birfofbr, Di/K
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Name of/the.Vi

ture of Authofi»d Representative

or

Signafh^df Authorized ̂ presentative

Name of Authorized Representative

Ex-p ^V\\Ae. OQQ^f.-ejC
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 ExhiUl I •
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N«w Hampshire Deparhnent of HeaKh and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of IndMdual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated Tirst-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following infonmation for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identTier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wlOi the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1,11 and 1.12ofthe General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor NameiTfi-CovvvV-^ Cft'TvvwvyvivKj AcVvo*\

Date
u i/ii— ri ■■

Name: TC^VNWt-
Tite:

Exhibit J - Certificebon Rsganting the Federal Funding Vendor Inlllsis
Accountability And TransperencyAcl (FFATA) CompBance
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1.  The DUNS number for your entity Is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?^operative ag

YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S,C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to tt3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to S3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name;.

Name:.

Name;

Name;.

Name:

Amount:

Amount:,

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount:

CUOHHSdIflTia

ExhIWt J - C«nlftcatlon Regarding the Federel Furvling Vendor initials
Accountability And Trsnaperency Act (FFATA) Complance
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potentiai access to personaily identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic, With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shai) have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Departmerit
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means ali confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as alt medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and ali information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted'
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FT!), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HiPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent, incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Last update 1(V09/18 Exhibll K Contractor Initials
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFl,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information' (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an indrvidual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc.,

alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Infomiation" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Infomiation.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitule a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential information in response to a
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on (he basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. wthout first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confinn compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmiHing DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site, if End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google .Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. if End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected,

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communicaUon to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User wilt
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABiIe RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and,any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ail electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identifted in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

vs. Last update 1Qf09'18 ExhIbllK Conlfaclorlnlliats^
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 4 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanltizatlon, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanltizatlon, National institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

>

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy ali hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor smII maintairi proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor Mill maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information Irfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controis to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential infoimation
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor v^ll provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. if the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements wili be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. if the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, ttie Contractor will execute a HiPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stale of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability, in the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone cail center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with ail applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential information, and must in ail other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www,nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This Includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any Slate of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network,

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users (who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connexion with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply vrith such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-t>ased
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application. ,

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract

V, LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notrfication is required, and. if so. identify appropriate
Breach notrfication methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

Vi. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSlnformationSecurityOfrtce@dhhs.nh.gov
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